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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

NOTICE
TO THE MEMBERS

Notice is hereby gtven that the 46th Annual General Meeting of BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED will be held on Thursday, 20th
Sepiember?r::r8atri 00AMartheRegistereciOfiicecrfiheCompanyatPioiNo 5 Secior-25,Bai{abhgarh.Haryana-12.|004
to transact the followrng bustness

ORONARY BUSINESS:

1 To consrder and adopt the Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 201 8, the Balance Sheet
as at that date and the Reoorts of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appornt a Dtrector In place of Mrs Jaya Sharma {DlN-071359E9} who retrre by rotation at this Annual General Meeting
and berng elgible offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

1 . To consder and ff thought fit. to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution(s) as an Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions oi seciions i96 i97 reaci wiih ihe Scheciuie V anci oiher appiicabie
provlsrons if any. of the Companies Act, 201 3 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being ,n force). consen! of the Members be and is hereby given for the re-appointment of Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma
(D1N 00041150) as Chairman (berng Whole Time Director) of the Company for a further period of S(five) years w.e f
0lstJuiv 20'lSontheremunerationandothertermsandconditionsassetoutinthedraftagreementplacedbeforethe
meetrnc and rnitiailed bv the Chairman for the ourpose of rdentification.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby specifically authorised to alter and
vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment and/ or agreement so as not to exceed the limit specified in

Schedute V to the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force; as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma."

2. To conside; and if ihought fit to pass with or withoiii modificatiofiis), ihe foiiowing iesolution(si as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provrsions of sections 196. 197 read with the Schedule V and other applicable
provrsrons if any of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being ,n force). consent of the Members be and is hereby given for the re^appointment of Sri Hirnanshu Sharma (DlN:
000411811 as Manegrng Director of the Company for a fudher period of S(five) years wef. 01st July. 20!8 on the
1emuneiation and other tei'ms and conditions as set out rr: ihe draft agi'eement placed before the meeting and initialled
by the Chairman for the purpose ol identification

RESOL,VED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby specifically authorised to alter and

vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment and/ or agreement so as not to exceed the limit specified in

Schedute V to the Comoanres Act. 2013 (includrng any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in fcrcer es msy be egr.eed to betireen the Bcard of Directors and Sri !-*menshu Sherrna'

Registered Office
Plot No-5 Sector-25
Ballabhgarh
Harvana 1).nnd

Date 10105120t8
Place Kolkata

By the Order of the
BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

RITUDAMANI
COMPANY SECRETARY

ACS: 35435

AStatement pursuant to Seclion 102(1)of the CompaniesAct 201 3 ("theAct"), relating to the Special Business to be

transacted at the Annual General Meeting (''Meeting") is annexed hereto.

A member entrfled to attend and vote at theAnnual General Meeting (the "Meeting") is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on a Doll rnstead of himl her and the proxy need not be a member of the Company The instrument appointing

the proxy shoutd however. be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before

the commen@ment of the meeting
A person can act a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percenr rf the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the

ictal s!'!are caprtal cf the Company .atrytng vcting !.ights may appoint I single perscn as prcxy and such person shall not

acl a: a oioxy fo. aiiv other peisoil o. shareholdei

The .equrrement to place the matter relating to appointment of Auditors for ratification by members at every Annual

Generar Meetrng rs done away with vide notification dated May 7 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. New

Delhi Accordrngly no resolution rs proposed for ratificatron of apoointment of Auditors. who were appointed in the



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Annua, General Meetrng held on September 25 2017

Attendance s|p groxy form and the route map of the venue of the Meeting are annexed hereto.

Corporate n'iembeis iniending to send their autho.ised rep.esentative(s) io attend ihe lvleeting are iequested to send to

the Company a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with the specimen signature(s) of the
representative(s) authonsed under the satd Board Resolutron to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

Members I Proxies r Aulhorised Representatives are requested to bring to the Meeting necessary details of their
sharehordrng attendance sttp(s) and coptes otAnnual Report In case of lornt holders attendrng the Meetlng, only such
joint hoider who is higher in the order of names will be enirtled to vote at the Meeting

Members who hold shares In the dematerialized form are requested to bring their Depository lD Number and Client lD
numbers to facilitate easrer identification of attendance at the Annual General Meeting.

Menrbers are rnformed that the sc!.ip of the Company are activated both on CDSL and NSDL and may be dcmaterialized
underthe lslN No 1NE026101010

Messrs Skyline Financral Services Pvt Ltd has been appointed as Registrars and Share Transfer Agents for both
physrcar and dematerialized shares of the Company.

The Regrster of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Friday, September 14, 20i8 to
Thursdav September 20. 2018 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting.

The rnstrument of transfer completed in all respect together wrth requisite enclosure, should be sent to the Company
well rr. advance so as to reach the Comoany prior to closure of Register of Members

Members hold,ng shares in electronic mode are requested to intimate any change in their address or bank mandates to

their DeOository Fartrcrpants ("DPs ) with whom they are !'naintaining their demat accounts Members holding shares in

physrcar mode are requested to advise any change in lherr address or bank mandates to the Company / Company's
Registrar and Transfer Agents, i.e Skyline Financial Servrces Pvt Ltd

For any rurtner rnformatron regarcttng accounts Intimation may De grven to the Company !n wrlting at ieast i0 days tn

advance from the date of the aforesaid meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready

Members hotdrng shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them The

orescnbed formian be obtatnedl submitted to Registrar & Share TransferAgents of the Company.

SEBI has dectded thal securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialised form from a cut-off date.

to be notified In view of the above and to avail various benefits of dematerialisation, members are advised to dematerialise
shares held by them rn ohysical form.

;6 15s rrght of the recent green initiative of the Government of Ind'a those inernbers whc have not yet registered their
emaii ,d:s are requesteci io regisier ttieir ernaii ici's with ther deposiiory participanis in ease of shares held in eiernatetialiseci

form ano those members holding shares in physical form to regrster thetr email id's with the R & T agent for receiving all

commirnrcatron includrng Annuat Report. Notices, Circulars, etc from the Company electronically. We ufge upon you to

register lhe email rd on priority and help the Company to support the nation in the green initiative

Pursuanr to the provrsrons of Investor Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and

unclarmed amounts tying with Companies Rules 2012. the Company has NIL amount unpaid and unclaimed with the

Companv as on 25th September 2017 (date of lastAnnual General Meeting) and the company has declared the same

with the Minrstry of Corporate Affairs website

Membe.s holding shares in physical mode:
i) are reourred tolubmii theri PermanentAccouni Number iPAl'Ji and bank account deiails to ihe Company / R&TAgeni.
if not regrstered with the Company as mandated by SEBI
ii) are 'equested to register r update their e-mail address wrth the Company / R&TAgent for receiving all communications
from the Company electronically.

Members hotciing shares in eiec-trontc mode.
i) are .equesteclc submit their PAN and bank account details to their respective DPs with whom they are maintaining

their demat accounts
ii) are .equested to regtster / update their e-mail address wrth therr respective DPs for receiving all communications from

the Comoany electronrcallY
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

20. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the accompanying Statement are open for inspection by Members at

the Reqrstered Office of the Company during business hours on all working days, up to the date of the Meeting.

21 In compirance with the provrsions of seclion 108 of the CompanresAct, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Manage-

ment and Administratron) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management andAdministration) Rules, 2015 and
Regulatron 44 of Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements ) Regulation.
20iS tne Company rs pteased to provide members facilrty to exercise their right to vote on resolution proposed to be

considered at the 46th Annual General Meeting ( AGM ) by electronic means and the business may be transacted
through e,voting servrces Necessar.y arrangements have been made by the Company with National Securities Deposi-
tory (indrai Lrmited (fiSDL) io faciiitate remote e-voting. E voiing rs opiional and members shali have ihe option to vote

either through remote e-voting or in person at the general meeting.-

The instructrons for members for remote e-voting are as under -

A. The way to vote electronically on NSOL e-voting System Consists of "Two stop6" which are mention€d
below

Step r Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system
Step 2 Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e'voting system

Dotaits orr step 1 are mentioned bslow:

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL Open web browger bv typing the following URL: https /A^/ww.evoting.nsdl.com/ on

a personal Computer or on a mobile

Z. Once rne home page of e-Voting system ts iauncheci, ciick on the icon "Login" which is available uncier'Shareholders'
s€ction

3. A new screen will open You will have to enter your User lD. your Password and a Verification Code as shown on the

screen

Alternatrvely rf you are registered for NSDL eservices r e ID€AS, you can log-in at https //eservices.nsdl.coml !'rith

your exrsting IDEnS togrn. bnce you log-rn to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and
you can proc€ed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electron,cally

4 Your User lD details will be as per details given below

Your oassword details are given below.

lf you are already regrstered for e-Voting. then you can i-,se your existing gassword to login and cast your '/ote

lf you are usrng NSDL e-Voting system for the first time you will need to retrieve the 'initial password' which was

communrcated ro you Once you retrieve your'initial password'. you need enter the 'initial password' end the system will

force vou to change your password.

How u 'etrieve your 'initiai password'?

lf your email lD rs regrstered in your demat account or with the Company. your'initial password' is communicated to you

on youi emait tD Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox Open the email and open the attachment i e

5.

o.

i

Manner of holdrng shares j e Demat ( NSDL or CDSL) or Physical Your User lD is:

For Members who hold shares in demat account with NSDL: 8 Character DP lD fotlowed by 8 Digit Client lD (For example if

your DP lD is 1N300.". and Client lD is 12'-'--" then your user

lD is 1N300-""1 2"-"""")

For Members who hold shares in demat account with CDSL: 16 Digit Beneficiary lD (For example if your Beneficiary lD is

then your user lD is

For Members holding shares in Physical Form: EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the

company (Fo!'example if folio number is 0C1-". and EVEN is

101456 then user lD is 101456001*-).
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a .pdt fite Open the pdf file The password to open the pdf file rs your 8 digit client lD for NSDL account. last 8 digits

of clienr tD for CDSL account or fo[o number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your'User lD' and

your 'nrttal oassword

ii. lf you' email lD rs not registered. your'initial password' rs communrcated to you on your postal address.

6. lf you are unable to retrieve or have not recerved the "lnrtial password" or have forgotten your password:

a. Click on "Forgot User DetailslPassword?"rlf you are holdin,o shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL)

optron availaDle cn www evoting nsdi com

b "Physical User Reset Password?" (lf vou are holding shares rn physical mode) option available on

www evotrng nsdl com

c. lf yor: are Strlt tlnable to get the password by aforesaid two oFtions. yotr can Send a !'equest at evoting@nsdl.co In

mentronrng your demat account number/folio ntrmber. your PAN your name and your registered address.

7 After entering your password. tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by selecting on the check box

L Now vo' will have t(, ciick on "Logtn" brutton

I After vou click on the Login" button. Home page of e-Voting will open.

Detail on Step 2 or given below.

i Afiei successful iogrir ai Step 1, yoti will be abie io see the Hoilie page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then. ciick on

Active Voting Cycles

2. Afier clrck on Actlve Votrng Cycles you will be able to see ali the companres "EVEN" in which you are holding shares

and whose votrng cycle is in active status

3. Seiecr FVEN of ihe Company for whtch you wish to casi your vote.

4. Now vou are ready for e-Voting as the Vottng page opens.

5. Cast vour vote by selecttng appropriate options i e. assent or drssent. verify/modify the number of shares for which you

wigh re ca5l yolrr vote and Click on "Sttbmit" arrd also "Confirm when p!'ompted

6. Upon ;onfirmation the message 'Vote cast successfully will be displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clickrng on the print option on the confirmation page.

8 Once vor.r conf;rn your vote on the fesolution you will not be allowed to modif-y your vote

B. General Guidelines for shareholders:

1 lnstitu|onal shareholders (i e other than indivrduals. HUF. NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG

Formari of the ieievani Soard Resoiution/Authority iettei etc with attesied specirnen signature of the duiy authorized

signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote to the Scrutinrzer by e-mail to shawmanoj2003@9mail.com or

shawmanoj2003@yahoo com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdi.co in

2. lt rs srrclnglv recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your

passwnrrj confrdentra! I ogin to the e-voting websrte wrll be drsabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the

corre6 oassworo rn such an event you will need to go through the 'Forgot User Details/Password?" or "Physical User

Reset password?' oDtion available on www evoting nsdl com to reset the password.

3. In case :f any queries you may refer to the Frequentlv Asked Questrons (FAQs) for members and e-votrng user manual

for rrrerilbers avariabie ai ihe Dowirioarjs seetions wwwevoting nsdi com or cor-riact NSDL ai tlie foliowing ioll free iio

1800"222-990 or send a request at evoting@ nsdl.co in

4 The remote e-voting perrod commenc€s on Monday, 17th September. 2018 ('10.00 a m IST) and ends on Wednesday,
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19th September 2018 {5.00 p m IST). During this period Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical

form oln dematerialized form. as on 14th September, 2018. may cast their vote electtonically, The remote e-voting

module shalr be drsabled by NSDL for voting thereafier Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the Member, he shall

not be allowed to change it subsequently.

The votrng nghts of Members shall be in proportion to therr shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company

as on September 14th, 2018.

Mr Manol Prasad Shaw, Practicing Company Secretary {Membership No. FCS 5517), has been appointed as the

Scrutrnrzer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

Facility for voting through polling paper shall be made available at the 46th Annual General Meeting and members

attendrng the meeting who have not already cast their vote by .remote e-voting sha!! be able to exercise their rights at

the concemed meetrng

The Scrutinrzer shall after conclusion of voting at the general meetrng. first count the votes at the meeting, thereafter

unblock the votes c€st through remote e-voting within stipulated time from the conclusion of the !'emote e-voting period

. rn the presence of at least two witnesses not In the employment of the Company and make not later than 48 hours of

conctusron of the meeting. a consolidated Scruiinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the

chairman of the meeting who will @unter sign the same and declare the results of voting forthwith

Members who have cast theu vote by remote e-voting pnor to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be

entitled to cast therr vote again.

10 Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in demateriaiized form . as on 14th September.

2018 may oot for remote e-voting or voting at the AGM through Dolling pqp91.

11 The !'esult declared along with the Scrutinizefs Report shall be plac€d on the Company's website www.globalbol.com

and on the website of NSDL www.evoting nsdl.com rmmediately on declaration of result by the chairman and

communrcate to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) where the shares of the Company are listed.

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE:

Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companres Act. 2013.

ITEM NO.4

Sh6 Suresh Kumar who was appointed as a Chairman (Executive). (being the Whole Time Director) by the Members to hotd

office upto 31st December 2018 will attain age of 70 years on 21st October.2o18 and hence continuation of his employement

whole Time Director requires approval of members by way o( a Special Resoluticfl

Section 196(3) of the Companies Act, 201 3, inter alia provides that no Company shall continue the employment of a person

who has attarned the age of 70 years. as Managing Director ,Whole Time Director or Manager unless it is approved by the

member bV passing a Specral Resolution

Funher the Company and Sn Suresh Kumar Sharma mutuaiiy decrcjed to terminate the agreement oi his appointment

prematurelv Keeptng in vrew that Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma has rich and varied experience in the industry and has been

involved in ihe operations of the Company over a long period of time: it would be in the interest of the Company to continue

the emplovment of Shn Sr-rresh Kumar Sharma as Whofe Time Director

pursuant tc the fecommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. the Board of Directors of the Company

passed a resolution on 28th June. 20'l 8 approving re-appointment of Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma. as Chairman (Executive).
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(being the Whote -l-ime Duector) of the Company for a further penod of 5 (five) years w.e f . 01st July, 2018. This is subiect to

the approval tf the shareholders at this Annual General Meeting

This explanarorv starement may also be read and treatecj as ciisciosure in compiiance with the requlrements oi Sedion 190 of

the Companres Act 2013

The details or .emuneratron pavable to Shri Suresh Kumar Sharma and the terms and conditions of the le-appointment are

given below

1) SAtARy Rs 20.000f p m and subiect to periodrcal increments as may be approved by Remuneraiion Committee from

time to time wrthrn the limits prescribed under Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 or any statutory modification thereof

2) pEReUtSITES In addition to the aforesaid Salary the followrng perqursites will be allowed which will be restricted to an

amount so that the total ol salary and perks shall not exceed Rs 24 00 000/- per enntlm

i) Housrnq House Rent Allowance

{a) The expenditure Incurred by the Company on hrring unfurnished accommodation forthe Chairman (Executive) shall be

subjeci !o a ceilrng of 50% of the saiary

(b) ln case the accommodatron is owned by the Ccmpany. 10% of the salary of the Chairman (Executive) shall be deducted

by the ComPanY

(c) fn case ro accornmodat,on is provided by the Companv the Charrman {Executive) shell b'e entitled to House Rent

Allowance sublect to a ceiling of 60% of the salary

{d) The exoenditure which may be incurred by the Company on Gas. Electricity, Water, Furnishings. Repairs, and other

expenses for maintarnrng in full the accommodation occupied by the Chairman (Executive) restricted to 30% of the

annual salary

ii) Medicar Reimbursement i Medical Insurance Policy/ P.A Poltcy

Exoenses rncurred for the Chairman (Executive) and his family rn accordance with the rules of the Company.

iii) Leave t.avei Concesston

For the Chairman (Executtve) and his family to and fro to any place once in a year in accordance with the rules specified

by the ComPany

iv) Club Fees

Fees and subscription of maximum two clubs. This will nol include admission and life membershlp fees

v) Companv's contribution towards Provident Fund / Super Annuation Fund or Annurty Fund

As per "utes of the Comoany but to the extent these either singlv or put together to the extent not taxable under the

Income Tzx Ac1 1961

vi) Graturtv

ln ascr.dance wth the provisions of the approved fund biit shali not exceed haif month's salary for each completed

year ^{ servlce

vii) Leave l. futl pay and allowances as per rules of the Company but not exceeding one month's leave for every

compteted year of servrce subject to the condrtion that leave accumulated but not availed of will not be allowed to be

ana rc had

viii) Use or aompany's car with driver for business of the Company

ixi Teleohone at residence for business of the Company
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x) Reimbu.sement of all entertainment and travelrng expenses actually incurred by the Chairman (Executive) for the

business of the Companv

The rtems stated in v vl vit. vtii. ix and x shall not be constdered as oerquisites.

3) In the event of loss or rnadequacy of profits in any financral year during the aforesaid period the Company will pay the

Chairmar' (ExecutrveJ the same remuneration as mentioned hereln above.

4) The Board of Diiectors tre and is hefeby specrfically ai.jthorized to aitei- and vary the terms and conditions of the

aforesard appointment including remuneration of Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma so as not to exceed the limits specified in

Schedute V to the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being

in force or any amendment and/or modification that may hereafter be made thereto by the Central Government in that

behaif irorn trme to lime or any amendmeni thereto as may be agreeci io between the Eoarci anci Sri Suresh Kumar

Sharma

5) Sri Suresh Kumar Sharma agreed to devote hrs best attentron to the business of the Company and to further safeguard

the rnterest of the Company, including security of its trade secrets and the processes etc. and to make known and

avatlabre exciusively io the Company any inventiofi, discovery or design of theirs,

6) The terms and condittons of the said appointment andlor agreement may be altered or varied from time to time mutually

by the Company and the Chairman {being Whole-Time Drrector) subtect to the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013

oi- anv ar-nendmeni thereof and wiih the approva! of the Shaieholders and/cr Central Gcvernmenl. whene'''er requiied.

7) This agreement shall be subiecl to approvai of the Shareholders of the Company at a general meeting.

Excrpl Shn Suresh Kumar Sharma. none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their

relatives are concerned or rnterested. financialiv or otherwise in thls resolution

ITEM NO,5

The term of office of Shri Himanshu Sharma as Managrng Director was due to expire on 31st December, 2018

ConsrcJerrng the hrgher limits available pursuant to Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013. formation of Nomination and

Remuneratrcn Cornrnittee by the Cornpanr- and irnprcved '"vorking cf the Cornpany, the Company and Shri Himanshu

Sharma mutually decrded to terminate the agreement of hrs appointment prematurely.Keeping in view that Sri Himanshu

Sharma has nch and varied experience in the lndustry and has been involved in the operations of the Company over

a lonq oenod of time rt would be in the interest of the Company to continue the employment of Shri Himanshu Sharma

h -^^.-.a5 tvtdr tdgl tv uil Eutui

pursuanr to the recommendation of the Nomrnation and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the

Companv passed a resolution on 28th June approving re-appointment of Sri Himanshu Sharma, as Managing Director

of the t--ompan! for a further period of 5 (a:ivei years with ef,'ect from i st ..luiy, 20 i 8 on the i'resh tei-ms and conditions

This rs subiect to the approval of the Shareholder$ at thrs Annual General Meeting.

This exolanatory statement may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the requirements of Section

190 ol the Compantes Act. 2013

The deiarls ot remuneratton payable to Shri Himanshu Sharma and the t€rms and conditlons of the re-appointment are

grven nelow

j, SALARy Rs 300.000r- p m and subject to periodical Increments as may be approved by Remuneration Committee

from lrne to tlme wfhrn tne llmtts prescnbed under schedule v ot the companles Act 20'13 or any statutory mocllficatlon

thereo?

2) PERQ(XSITES In addition to the aforesaid Salary the following perquisites will be allowed which will be restricted to
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an amount so that the total of salery and perks shall not ex@ed Rs.48,00,000/- per annum

i) Housrng : House Rent Allowance

(a) The experrditure tncuired by the Conrpany on hiring unfirilished accomrnodation fot the Managing Director sliail be

subiecl to a cerling of 60% of the salary.

(b) Incasetheaccommodation isownedbytheCompany 10o/oof thesalaryof theManagingDirectorshall bedeductedby

the ComDanv

(c) In case no accommodatron is provided by the Company, the Managing Director shall be entitled to House RentAllowance

subiect to a cerling of 60% of the salary

(ct) Ths expenditure whrch may te incurred by the Company on Gas Electricity, Water Furnishings, Repairs and other

expenses for maintarning in full the accommodation occupied by the Managing Darec{or restricted to 30% of the annual

salarv

ii) Medrcal Reimbursement I Medical Insurance Policy/ PA Policy

Expenses Incurred for ihe Mg. Director and his family in ac@idance with ihe iuies of the Company.

iii) Leave T.avel Concesston

For the Managrng Director and his family to and fro to any place once in a year in accordan@ with the rules specified

by the iompany

iv) Club Fees

Fees and subscription of maxrmum two clubs This will not include admission and life membership fees.

v) Cor.n0ar.vs contnbutron towards P.ovident Fund / Super Annuetron Fund orAnnuity Fund

As per rules of the Company but to the extent these either singly or put together to the extent not taxable under the

lncomeTax Act 1961

vi) Graturtv

In accordance with the provisions of the approved fund but shall not exceed half month's salary for each completed

year of service

vii) Leave on fult p6y and allowances as per rules of the Company but not exceeding one month's leave foi every

compteted year of servrce subject to the condition thal leave accumulated but not availed of will not be allowed to be

encashed

viii) Use o{ Company's car with driver for business of the Company

ix) TeleDnone at restdence tbr business of the Company.

x ) Reimbursement of all entertainment and traveilng expenses actually incurred by the Managing Director for the business

of the Company

The rtems stated !n v vr vlr vrii, ix end x shall not be considered as perqulsltes.

3) In the event of toss or rnadequacy of profits in any financral year during the aforesaid period the Company will pay the

Manaqrng Drreclor the same remuneration as mentioned herern above.

4) The Board of Directors be and is herebv specificallY authorized to alter and varY the terms and conditions of the

aforesard apporntment including remuneration of Sri Hrmanshu Sharma so as not to exceed the limits specified in

Schedure V to the Companles Act. 2013 includrng any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being
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in force rr any amendment and/of modification that may hereafter be made thereto by the Central Government in that

behalf fromtrmetotime oranyamendmenttheretoasmaybeagreedtobetweentheBoard and Srl Himanshu

Shamra

Sri Himanshu Sharma agreed to devote his best attention to the busrness of the Company and to further safeguard the

interest of the Company. including security of its trade secrets and the processes etc and to make known and

available exclusively to the Company any invention, discovery or design of theirs.

The terms and conditions of the sard appointment andioi'agreement inay be aiteied or vaiied fiom time to time mutuatiy

by the Company and the Managing Director sub,ect to the provrsions of the CompaniesAct,2013 or any amendment

thereof and with the approval of the Shareholders and/or Central Government, whenever required.

This agreemeni shall be subjeci tG approva! of the Shai'ehoiders of ihe Company at a geneial meeting ''

Excepr Shri Himanshu Sharma. none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives

are cc'ncerned or Interested. financially or otheMise in this resolutton.

Regrstered Office

Plot No-5 Sector-zs

Ballabr'earh

Harvana-l21004

Date 30/05/2018

Place Kclkata

By the Ordet of the
BHAGAWATi OXYGEN LiMITEI)

RITUDAMANI
COMPANY SECRETARY

ACS: 35435

ADDITIONAL INFORi'ATION ON DIRECTORS RECOMMENDED FOR APPOINTMENT / RE.APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED

UNDER REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI(LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT} REGULATIONS, 2015 :

Note: DiSclosure of relationshrp between Directors Inter-se as required rjnder Sub-regulation 3 of Regulation 36 of SEBI

(Listing Obtroatrons and Disciosure Requirements) Reaulations 2015 Srr SLrresh Kumar Sharma, Whole-time Director is father

of Sri Himansirr; Sharma Managrng Director and father rn law of Smt Jaya Sharma. Women Director.

Name of the Director Sn Suresh Kumar Shai'ma Sri Himanshu Sharma Smt,.Java Sharma

Date of Brrth 2lstOctober. 1948 28th October.1971 21st March.1974

Date of Frrst Appotntment 1Oth July, 1972 26th Auqust,1996 31st March,2015

Qualificatrons B COM (HONS) B Enqq B COM (HONS)

Professioriai Merril€r shrQ t\tL t\tL IIIL

Nature of nrs expertise In

specific functtonal areas

More than 42 years of

expenence In the gases

Inousw

More than 22 years ol

experience in the

manufacturing industry

3 years of experience

in the gases industry

Names of Ine iisted enlities In which he also

holds Directorshrp of Boards

NIL NIL NIL

Name of the I'sted entities in which he also

holds Membershrp of Commrttees of Boards

NIL NIL NIL

No of Shares held in the Company AFAf,E 62800 63500
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DIRECTORS'REPORT

Dear Shareholders
The Direclors have pleasure In presentinq the 46th Annual Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31. 2018

1. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS: (Rs)

Particulars 201 7-1 8 201 6-1 7

Total income 10.00.76.403 't1.62.59.206

PBDIT 3,09,43,134 2,11,17,322

Finance cogt 67,48,442 18,06,751

Depreciation & amortization 1,85,95,400 41,76,301

E'llT 55,99,292 1,51,34,270

Tax expense 15.12.469 49.3E.293

PAT 40.85,823 1,01,95,977

Surplus- opening balance 10,25,32,012 9,23,36.035

Surplus- closing baiance r0.66,18,835 i0.25.32.012

2. OPERATION:
During the year under review the sales and other income of the Company amounted to Rs 10.00,76,403 compared to Rs

11,62,59,20-6 In the prevrous year After providing for fanancial charges depreciation, current and deferred taxation and other

adjustments the Company reporteci profii afier tax and extraorciinary item of Rs 40.86,823.

3. DIVIDEND:
The Board considered it to be prudent to conserve the resources for the Company's growth and expansion and accordingly

does not recommend payment of any dividend on the equity shares for the financial year under review.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
The Directors da not p!.opose to transfer any amount to the general reserves, during the year

5. STATEI$ENTIN RESPECTOFADEQUACYOF INTERMLFIMNCIALCONTROLWTTH REFERENCETOTHEFIMNCIALSTATEMENTS:
The Company has rn place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year, such
controls were tested and no reportable or material weakness in the design or operation was observed.

6. trANAGEiIEiIT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:

@rnanufaauringindustry,'supp|yin9oXygengasfromGhatsi|ap|antonexc|usivesupp|yscheme
basis. The Company is also making wtnd power and supplying to TNEB. Tamil Nadu

The Cirie gas ndustry appears to be Eretter and rs growing fast because of the improvement in the steel secto.
As our sales are tied up iome strat6giei adopted by your Company are ia) reducing cost of capital (b) transactional cost of
production (cr rs6uq;6t pollution levels (d) creation of good infrastructure etc. Your Company has taken adequate steps to

reduce the cost of production by continuously evaluatrng process improvements and best operational praciices. Although the

industrial gas rndusiry rs categoiized under white cetegory, your Company is committed to adhere to all applicable environment
regulationi and improve upon ihe environmentai perfcrmance oi! a continued basis.

Outlook:
TFF urag'ng growth on both production and sales rn previous years is likely to be sustained in current year also. Outlook

for the current yeir remains strong. The Company's operations are sub;ect to risks which can impact business performance

essentially with regard to pnces ofbasic materials like molecular sieves. power. The management is seized of assessing such

risks and takes measures to address the same.

Internal Control SYstem
@lnterna|controlprocedurescommensuratewithitssizeandnatureofbusiness.Theobjective
of these procedures rs to ensure efficient use and protection of the company resources, accuracy in financial reporting

and due compliance of statutes and company policies & procedures. Checks and balances exist in the system to ensure that
all transactrons are adequately authorized and reported correctly.

Human Resources Develooment:
@assetsconstitUtethedriV|ngforcebehindthecompany'sgrowthp|ans.TheCompany
has, during the orevious year. continued to have good industrral relations with its employees. Your Company would like to
record the whote-hearted support and dedication received from the employees at all levels.
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Cautionarv Statement :

Statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's position and expectation may be
"forward look,ng statements within the meaning of applicable securities iaws & regulations Actual results could differ
materially frorr' those expressed or implied lmportant factors that could make a difference to the Company's operation include,
among others economrc conditrons af€cting demandl supply. changes rn Government regulations, tax laws and other statutes
and incidenta! factors

7. LISTINGWITH STOCK EXCHANGES:
The Companv confirms that it has paid the annual listing fees for the year 2017-2018 to BSE where the Company's shares are listed

8. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES:
40. i 9% of the Company's parci up Equity Shares Capiiai is in demaieriaitzation form as on 31st March. 2016 anci baiance 59.81%
is in physicat rorm The Company's Registrar's and Share Transfer Agents are Mls Skyline Financial Services Pvt Ltd having
their office at D-153A 1st Floor Okhla lndustrial Area Phase-l New Delhi-r10020

9. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:
F)rrrina the ftnlnrtet vcat ?n11 1P a !l^!i\ mmfrno. ct the Boalrr.r cf DrreCtors cf the Company were held cn 18th lllay 2017uuiiliv.,.E v. 1\'vv'

12th Septenrber 20i7 iith Decenrtrer 20i7 and 08th Februai-y 20i8

10. DIRECTORS AND KEY IIIANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
In accordance with the provrsrons of the Act and the Artrcles of Association of the Company, Mrs Jaya Sharma (DlN-07135989),

director of lhe Company, retires by rotation at the ensurng Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered herself for re-
an66idfmanf

Declaratioh under section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013:

The Independent Drrectors of the Company have given the declaration of rndependence to the Company stating that they meet

the criteria of independence as mentioned under Sectron 149(6) of the CompanresAct,2013.

11 , DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEiIEi{T.:
In accordance with the provrsions of Sectron 134(5) ot the Companies Act 2013. the directors confirm that.

a lnthepreparationof theannual accountsforthefinancial yearended3l March20lS.theapplicableaccountingstandards
had been foltowed along wrth proper explanation relating to material departures. if eny;

b. The Difectors had selected srlch accounting policies arrd appired them consistently and made jirdgments and esiimates that
arereasonabteandprudentsoastogrveatrue andiau vrewof thestateof affairsof theCompanyasat3l Marcn.201E
and of the orofit of the Company for period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018;

c The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the marntenance of adequate accouniing records in accordance with

the provrsrons of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
i--^^,.1--;t,^-il Ituutdr {tE>

O TfrJOireaors had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 on a going concern basls,

e. The Director had lard down rnternal financial controls to be followed by the Comoany and that such internal financial controls

are adequate and were operating effectively.

f The Directcrs had devlsed prcper systems tc ensure comp|ance with the provisicns of al! applicable laws and that such

systems we'-e adequate arrd operatitrg efrectivety

12. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:
Pursuant to Sect,on 1 78(3) and other applicable provisrons of the Companies Act, 201 3 of the Act the Company has put in place

a Nomination and Remuneratron Policy framed by the Nominatron and Remuneration Committee of the Board for determining the

cua,ifications trosrt;ve attributes and lndependence ot the Di.rectors. besides recomnrending a polcy on rernunerat,on of the

directoi.s and Key manageiiai p€rsonnel The deiaiis of Nomination and Remuneraiioii Policy of the Compan'y are disclosed ifi
Annexure A of the Report

13. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
TheAudit Cornmittee of the Board is comprised of Mr Himanshu Sharma. Mr Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr Jagdish Chandra Kaushik,

with Mr Himanshu Sharma as a executive Director/Managrng f)rrector and Mr Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr .lagdish Chandra Kaushik

as Independent Directo!'s All the recommendaticns made by the Audit Corn:'nittee were acccpted by the Bcard.
DuringiheFinancral Year2017.18,4(four)meetingsoftheAuditCommitteeofthe BoardofDilectorswereheldlBthMay20lT
12th Septembe.2017 11th December 2017 and 08th February 2018
,I4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Nominatron and Remuneration Committee of the Board are compnsed of Mrs. Jaya Sharma. Mr. Bioin Bihari Lal and Mr

Jag4ish Chandra Kaushrk fi,4rs Jeya Sharma being a non-execut,'.,e Oirector end fttlr. Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr Jagdish ChenCra

Kaushik berna Independenl Directors

During the Frnangai Year 2017 -18. 1 (One) meeting of the Nomrnation and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors

were held on rSth Mav 20'1 7
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1 5. STAKEHOLDER REIATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
The Stakehotder Relatronshrp committee of the Board are comprtsed of Mrs Jaya Sharma. Mr Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr. Jagdish
Chandra Kaushrk Mrs Jaya Sharma being a non-executive Director and Mr Bipin Bihari Lal and Mr Jagdish Chandra Kaushik

treing lndependent Directofs

DuringtheFrnanciai yssllQ17-18. 1(One) meetingof theStakeholdetRelationshipcommitteeof theBo€rdof Direc{orswere
held on 18th May 20'17

16. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT:
At the 45th Annual Generat Meeting (AGM) of your Company held on September 25.2017, Chetan & Co, Chartered Accoun-

tanis,. (Firm Regtsiratron No 32i151E) were appointecj as Staiutory Aucirtors of your Company to hold Office for a r-erm of
S(Five) years tro-m tfre conclusron of 45th AGM (subiect to ratification of such appointment by the members at every AGM) till

tfre conclusron of the 50th AGM of your Company Accordingly, the apporntment of Chetan & Co, Chartered Accountants, (Firm

Registration No 32t151Et as Statutory Auditors of your Company. is placed for ratification by the members.

Your Companv has recerved a confirmation from Chetan & Co Chartered Accountants, to this effect that their appointment. if

ratafied. would be withtn the iinrits prescfibed under section i39 of the Companies Act. 20i3 and the rules framed there under

and In accordance wttn sectton 141 of the CompanresAct,2013 They have also confirmed thatthey hold a valld peer review

certificate as Drescribed under regulation 33(1Xd) of SEBI Listrng Regulatrons. 2015.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of your Company recommend ratification of their appointment from the

conclusion o1 thrs AGM upto the conclusion of the 47th AGM of your Company The Auditors' Report does not contain any
qualification reserr'atton or adverse remark or disclarmer. Further. ihe Statutory, Auditors have not reported any incident of
fraucj during tne year under review io the Aucjii Committee of your Company

1 7. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:
The Board has appornted Mr ManoJ Prasad Shaw. Practising Company Secretary (FCS 4194), to conduct Secretarial Audit for the

financial year20iZ-tB TheSecretirial AuditReportforthefinanoal yearendedMarch3l,20lSisannexedherewithmarkedas
Annexurb -B '. fhis Report The Secrelarral Audit Repcrt does rot contain any qualification. reseryaticn cr ad'rerse rernark

18. MATERIAL CHANGES OCCURREDAFTER END OF FINANCIALYEAR:
No material .hanges and commitment whtch could affect the Company's financial position have occurred between the end of

the financial vear of the Company and date of this report.

1 9. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
Theinformatron!.equtreounderseclionl34oftheCompaniesAct.20l3 tsprovtdedrn'AnnexureC'tothisReport.

20. VIGIL MECHANISM:
In pursuant lc Sectron 177(91 of the Act 20 13 and Rules made there under, the company has in place a policy on vigil
mechanism for enabling the Directors and employees of the Company to report their genuine concerns. if any and also provides

for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons using the mechanasm

21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY {CSR}:
The Companv has not devetoped and imptemented anv Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said provisions are not

applicable

22. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:
With reference to the orovistons of Section 134(3Xn) of the Companies Act 2013. the Board of Directors has developed a risk

*.,n"j"r"nt pten cf the Ccnrpany and had identified the key rrsk areas where the Cor"npeny's business is vulnerable The key

risk areas are further categorized in the following.-

(a) Strategic Rrsks

(b) Operational Risks and

{c) Financiat ancl Complian.e relatecl Risks

All the strategic operattonal and financial risks are duly analyzed and taken care of.

The Direclors are aware of the requirement of the risk mitigation plan and are @ntinuously making the necessary efforts to

redress the ;mpact of the adversities

23. STATEMENT ON FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION MADE BY THE BOARD OF tTS OWN PERFORMANCE. ITS DIREC'

TORS, AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES:
pursuant to fhe provrsrons of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"i. the Board carried out the performance evaluation of its own

and that of rts indivrduat Drrectors through the Nomination and Remuneratron Committee of the Board ('the Committee"), duly

constituted bv the Board for the above purpose. amongst others. ln terms of the Act.
During the \!ea{ ,rnder !.eview lhe Cornrnittee rnade the per,rofmence evaluation 3s gbove, based on the following criterions' rn

line with the !'ion,rnaiion and Remi;neiaiion Poiicy

- Attendance and parttctpatron rn the meetings.

- Preparedness for the meetlngs.

to
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- Understandrng of the Company and the external envrronment rn which rt operates and

- Constructive contnbution to rssues and active participation at meetlngs

The Committee found the Directors to be fulfilling the ,bove criterions

The Board atso conducted the performance evaluation of its vanous Committees. based on references made to the Commit-
tees. in terms cf the Ac{ and found the performan@ to be satisfactory

24. CONTRACT AND ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES:
The Audit Committee revre\rs all the Related Party Transaclions to ensure that the same are in line with the provisions of law
and poiicy. The commfiee approves the Related Party Transactrons. none of the transactions approveci in ihe financial year

breached arm's length and ordtnary course criteria.

All contracts arrangements i transactions enterecl by the Company dunng the financial yeer with related parties were in the
ordinary course of busrness and on an arm's length basis. During the year the Company had not entered into any contract /
arrangement . transaction with related parties which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the
Conrpany on .naterrality of telated perty transactaons

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note No 40 to the financial statement which sets out related party disclo-
s u res.

25. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
An extract of Annuat Return as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2018 in Form No. MGT-9 as requrred under Section
92{3} of the CompanresAct 2013 read with Rrrle 12{1) of the Qompanies (Management andAdministration) R(tles 2014 is set

out as an Annexure-D to the Direc{ors' Report.

26. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:
Details of Loans Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are

given in the notes to the Financial Statements

27. SHARE CAPITAL:
During the year under revew there was no change in share capltal of the Company.

28. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
The disclosure as requrred under Rule 5(1) of Compan€s (Apporntment & Remuneration of Managerral Personnel) Rules. 20'14

is enclosed wrth this feport as ,qnnexure E. The company hss not paid any remuneration attracting the provisions of Rule 5(2)

of the Companies (Appointmeiii & Remijneration of Managerial Peisonnel) Rules. 2014 Hence, no Infoimaiion is requtied to be

appended to thrs report In thts regard

29, CORPORATE WEBSITE:
The Companv maintains a website www.globalbol.com where detailed infonnation of the Company and its produc{ are provided

30. DrscLosuRES UNOER RULE 8i5) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTSi RULES, 2014:
al Financial summary or highlights: As detailed undel the heading 'Summary of Financial Results'

b) Change in the nature of business. if any: None

c) Details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel, who were appointed or resigned during the year:

Direciors/KMP Appointed NIL

DirectorslKMPresigned NIL

d) Names of Companies which have become or ceased to be Subsidiaries, Joint Venture Companies or
Associate Companies during the year- NIL

e ) Details retating to deposits: There were flo fixed d€posits from ihe public outstanding of the Company at the end of the

financiai vear

No fixed deposrt has been a@pted during the year and as such there is no default in repayment of the said deposits.

There has not been any deposit, which rs not in compliance with the requtremenis of Chapter V of the Companies Act. 2013

f) Details cf Significant and Material Orders passed by the regulators / Courte / Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and your Company's operations ilr future:

No significant and matenat orders have been passed by any regulator(s) or Court(s) or Tribunal(s) impacting the going

concern's status and Company's operations in future.

g) Adequacy of lnternal Financiat Control: The Company has an adequate system oJ internal control procedure as- commensurate wlth the stze and nature Of bustness. whrch ensures that all assets are Safeguarded and protected agalnst

loss and ail transactions are recrrded and r€ported correctly The rnternal control system of the Company is monitored and_

evaluated by Internat auditors and their audit reports are periodically reviewed by theAudit Committee of the Board of

Directors ]'he observatrons and comments of the Audit Commiftee are placed before the Board for reference.



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

The scope cf Internal audit Includes audit of purchase facrlities. sales promotion expenditure and incentive scheme
debtors and creditors policy. tnventory policy, vat cenvat and gst rnatters and others, which are also considered by the

Statutorv Auditorg while conduciing audit of the annual financial statements

3I, DTSCLOSURE UNDER THE S€XUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROIIIBITION AND

REDRESSALT AeT, 2013:
The Companv hes In place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in hne with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women
at the Workptace (Prevention Prohibition & Redressal) Act. 2013 The Drrectors are pleased to report that, during the year

under review nerther any complaints of sexual harassment were received by it. nor were lhere any complaints relating thereto
which required any drsposal thereof

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
The Board would lke to express its sincere apprectation for the valuable support and co-operation received from various

Central and State Government Authorities, Stock Exchanges Financial institutions and Banks during the year They also
gratefully 3c.knowledge the support extended by the customers and shareholders and contribution made by the employees at

all level

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place Kclkate
Date 30/05i2018

S K SHARMA
Chairman

(DiN 00041150)

ANNEXUREA

NOMINATION AND REII'UNERAT|ON POLIEY

lntroduction
This policy on nomrnation and remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) hes been formulated by the

Nomination anr1 Remuneratron Committee in pursuance of the Company's policy to consider human resources es its invaluable

assets to harmonize rhe aspirations of human resources consrstent with the goals of the Company. strch policy is in terms of
the provisions i{ the Companres Act, 20'1 3.

Definitions
'Act' means l-lompanaes Act 2013 and rules thereunder.

'Board of Drrectors or 'Board' rn relation to the Company. means the collective body of the directors of the Company.

'Committee neans Nomrnatron and Remuneratron Commrttee ot the Company as constituted or reconstituted by the Board

'Company' means Bhagawati Oxygen Limited

'Directors' means Drrectors of the Company

Independenr Director'mean3 a director i'eferred io an Section 149 (6i of the CompaniesAct,2013

'Key Managerral Personnel' (KMP) means

a, Manager appointed under the Compantes Act, 2013
b. Chief Financral Officer appornted under the Companies Act. 2013
c. Company Secretary appornted under the Companres Act. 2013
'Ministrv' means the Minlstry of Corporate Affairs. Governmenl of Indla

Objectives of the policy

The policy rs framed with the obleclives of facilitating the following

a To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors and Key Managerial

I To cleternrne remuneratroR based orr the Cornpany's size an<j firranciai position anci prevaieni trencis and ptaciices c.rtt

remuneratron In the Induslry

a To carn out evaluatton of the performance of Drrectors, as well as Key Managerial

; To retarr rnotrvate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustarnability of talented managerial personnel and create

competrtrve advantage

j Policy fo'Apporntment And Removal of Director and KMP

O Appointrnent Critena and Qualifications

r6



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIi,IITED

a The Committee shall identify and ascertain the qualification, expertise and experience of a person for appointment as
Director KMP or at Senror Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

O A person should possess adequate qualification. expertise and expenence for the position he / she is being considered
for appointifient The Committee has discretion to decide whethei'qualification, expertise and experience possessed by
a person rs sufficient I satisfaciory for the concerned pos,tion.

j The Company shall not ordinarily appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who has
attained the age of seventy years. However, the term of a person holding this position may be extended beyond the age
of seventy years rn such suitable cases as may be determined by the Committee.

Term / Tcnure

Managing Director/Whole Time Director/Manager

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Dtrector or Whole Time Director or Manager for a term not
exceeding five years at a time Also, where the re-appointment of the Managing Direc{or or Whole Time Dtrector or Manager is

deemed tc be fit by the Nornrnation and Rernuneration Committee such fe-appointment shall not be made eadier than one year
before the exprry of hrs term

Independent Director r

An Independent Direclor shall hold ofiice for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible
for re-appointment rf a special resolution is passed by the Company and such appointment is disclosed in the Board's report.

No Independent Diiectoi shali hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years each but such
lndependent Drreclor shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years from @asing to be an Independent Director

An Independent Director shall not. during the said period of three years be appointed in or be associated with the Company
in any other capacrty. either directly or indirectly.

Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director and KMP at regular intervals.

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Ac1 or under any other applicableAcl, rules and regulations thereun-
cjer, the Comrnittee fiay r-ecommend to the Board with reasoils recorded in writing, removal of a Director or KMP subiect to the
provasrons and complrance of the sard Act. rules and regulatlons

Retirement
The Director- and KMP shall retire as per the apphcable provisions of theAcl and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board
will have the discretion to retaln the Director and KMP in the same position/ remuneration or otheMise even after attaining the
retirement age f4rr the benefit of the Company

POLICY FOR REMUNERANON OF DIRECTOR,AND KMP

Remuneration of the llanaging Director/ Whole Time Director/ llanager

The remuneratron patd to the Managing Director/ Whole Time Director/ Manager is recommended by the Committee and
approved bv the Board rn the Board meeting. subject to the subsequent approval by the shareholders at a general meeting and

such other authorittes as the case may be.

At the Board meeting. only the Non-Executive and lndependent Directors participate in approving the remuneration paid to any

Managing Director ihe remuneration is arrived afrer considering various factors such as qualification, experience, expertise.
prevailing remuneration In the Industry and the finanoal position of the company

Remuneration of Non-Executive & lndependent Directors

The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors of the Company would be paid sitting fees for attending meeting of the
Board and they would not be paid any sitting fees for any Committees

The Non-Executive and Independent Directors may also be entitled to remuneration by way of such commission on profits
pursuant to ihe provtsrons of ihe Act for a financiai year as may be decided by the Boarci and approved by the sharehoiders
of the Companv from time to time In addition to the sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board.

The Non-Executive and tndependent Directors are also entitled to reimbursement of travel. hotel and other incidental expenses
rncurred bv them in the oerformance of their role and duties.

An Indeoendent Dtrector shall not be entitled to any stock oDtion if announced bv the Company.

Remuneration for Key ltranageriai Personnel

The Remuneration to be pard to KMPs shall be based on the experience. qualification and expertise of the related personnel and
governed bV rhe limtts. if any. prescribed under the Ac1 and rules made thereunder or any other enaclment for the time being
in force.
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This remuneratron poticy shall apply to all futurel continuing employment with the company. ln other respects, the Remunera-
tion Policy snalt be of gurdance for the Board Any departure from the policy shall be recorded and reasoned in the Committee
and Board meeting minutes The Board reserves its right to amend or modify this policy in whole or in the part. at any time
without assrgn,ng any rg3s3n whatsoer'er

Amendments to the Policy

The Board on rls own and .' or as Der the recommendations of the Cornmittee can amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit

In case of any amendment(s) clarification(s), circula(s) etc issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with the
provisions rarci down under this Polcy then such amendment{s]. clarrfication(s) circular(s) etc shall prevail upon the
provisions heieunder and ihrs Policy shall stand arnended acco|dingly frofii ihe effectlve date as laid dolvn under such

amendment{s) clarifrcation(s). ctrcular(s) etc

ANNEXURE€

Forrn No IUR-*?

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2018

fPursuant to section 20afi) of the Companies Act. 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
iAppointment and Remuneraiion Personnei) Rules. 2014J

To,
The Members,
M/s BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED
SECTOR 25- PLOT NO. 5
BALLABHGARH,
HARYANA.l 21004

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance o{ applrcable statutory provisions and the adherence to good

corporate practrces by M/s BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED. ihereinafter called the company) Secretarial Audit was con-
ducteci in a flanner ihai provided us a reasonable basis for evaluaiing the corporate conductsisiatutory compiiances anci

expressing .rur oprnlon thereon

Based on our verrfication of the M/s BHAGAWATT OXYGEN LIMITED's books. papers, minute books, forms and returns filed

and other records maintarned by the company and also the rnformation provided by the Company, its officers, agents and

authorized representattves during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has.

during the autlil period covenrlg ihe financiai year errcterl on fuiaich 3ist 20i6 corllplied with ihe statuio.y piovisions iisted

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in pla€ to the extent. in the

manner and sublect to the reporttng made hereinafter

We have examtned the books papers, mrnute books. forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s BHAGAWATI

OXYGEN LtillTED for the financial year ended on March 31 st 201 8 according to the provisions of

(i) The Companles Act 2013 (the Act) and the rtlles' ma.le thereilnrler

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act. 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under.

(iii) The Oepositones Act '1996 and the Regulatlons and Bye-laws framed there under;

(tv) Forergn Exchange ManagementAct, '1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign

Drreci Investment Overseas Direct Investment and External Commerciai Borrowings:

(v) The followrng Regutations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act. 1992

('SEBI Act') -

(a r rhe Securitres and Exchange Board of India (SubstantialAcquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations. 2011 ,

(br ihe Secuflttes and Exchange tsoard of Indra (Prohrbrtron of lnsrder'l radlng) Regulattons. 2O15.

(ct rhe Securrties and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2009
Not app|cable to the Company during the Audit Penod)

(di ihe Secuflties and Exchange Board of Inclia (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
;cheme) Guidetines 1999 /Not applrcable to the Company during the Audit Period)

te) -he Seculties and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Lrsting of Debt Securities) Regulations,2008. (Not

applicable to the Company during the Audit Periodl

(f ) r-he Secuflttes and Exchange Board of India (Regrstrars to an lssue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
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1993 regardrng the Companies Act and dealing with client

(S) 'he Securitres and Exchange Board of India (Delistrng of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the
Cornpany during the Audit Per'od) and

(h) rhe Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations. 1998. (Not aoolicable to the
Cor..rDany durtng the Audit Penod)

(vi) We have relied on the representatron made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the
Company for comphances under other applicable Acts Laws and Regulations to th€ Company. The list of maior head/
grouos of Acts. Lalvs and Regulations as applicable to the Company are as follows .-

I G€s CyirrrJsrs Rule 2004

O Static and Mobrle Pressure Vessels(unfired) Rules.'1981

l4/e have arsc exarnrned cornpliance with the applicable clauses cf the ,rollowing

(i) The company has complied with the applicable Clauses of Secretanal Standard (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the Institute
of Companv Secretaries of India and it was noted that the company has complied with the same to the edent possible

(ii) The company has complied wrth SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation. 20'15 entered into by

the f.ompany with the stock exchanges.

Dui.rng the penod undei review ihe Compan;i iias comphed with ihe provisions of theAci. Ruies. Regulattons, Gurde-
lines Standards etc mentioned above.

We further report that
The BcrarcJ ot l)rreetors of the Oompany is duly constitrrled with proper balance of Executive Directors. Non-Executive Directors

and Independent D!!'ectcrs No changes tock place in the composition of the Board of Directors during the pericd under review
Adequate notlce rs grven to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings agenda and detailed notes on agenda are sent at least

seven days 'r: advance and a system extsts for seeking and obtainrng further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meetrng and for meaningful participation at the meeting

Majority decrsron is carrred through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further !.eport that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations
of the companv to monitor and ensure compliance wrth applicable laws. ruies. regulations and guidelines.

We further report that durrng the audit period. the Company nas not accorded the consent of the member to the Board of
Director for anv specrfic events/ actions having a mator bearing on the Company's affairS.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30 05 2018

For M/s Manoj Shaw & Co.
(Company Secretaries)
Manoj Prasad Shaw
(Proprietor)
FCS No 5517. C P No 4i94

The reporl rs ro be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure - A and forms an integral part of this report

",4nnexure A"

T^

The Members
Bhagawatr Oxygen Ltmtted
Sector 25 Piot No 5

Ballabhgartr
Haryana- 121004

Our Report rr even date ts to be read aiong with this letter.

1 Maintenanre of Secretanai record rs the responsibrlity of the management of the Company Our resgronsibilily is to express

an opinicn ,1. these scct'etarial records bascd on our audit

2. We have iotiowed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness

of the contenrs of the Secretarial records The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected tn

Secretailat records We bel€ve that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financral records and Books of Accounts of the Company
4. Where ever requrred. we have obtained the Management representatron about the Compliance of laws, rules and regula-
tions and happenrng of events etc.

5. The Comotrance of the provisrons of Corporate and other apDiicable laws, rules. regulations, standards is the responsibiliw
of management Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretariai Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efiicacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affatrs of the Company

Place: Kolkata
Date 30 05 2018

For M/s Manoj Shaw & Co.
(Company Secretaries)
Manoi Prasad Shaw
(Proprietor)
FCSNo 5517.C PNo, 4194

ANNEXURE-C

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required to be disclosed
under sectron 134 of the Companies Act. 20i3 read with Companies iAccounts) Rutes. 20i4 are provideci hereunder.

(A) Conservation of Energy

(a) Energy conservation steps taken:

+Energy conservatton continues to recerve priority attention at all levels.

+Factories heve rmF)lemented measures to maintatn pow€r factor ahove 0 98

to reduce .eacttve power loss

+Gradual replacement of htgh energy illuminatron by lower power consuming tllumination In working area.

+Replecement of opaque sheets with translucent corrugated sheets to allow more natural light.

+Continuous efiort to reuseirecycle groutrd water

(b) Additional investment proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy:

(c) lmpact of measures of (af & (b) for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on cost of
production of goods:

+Reduction rn specific powei usage pei unit of outpui to be tealized in comang 'iears.

(d) Energy conservation in respect of specified industries: NA

{B} Technology Absorption

Research & Development (R&D)

1. Efforts and aroas in which R&D carried out:

+The Company is successfully doing improvement of product charactenstics

+Developing processes to rmprove producl cost structure

2. B€nefits derived as a result of the above efforts:

+lmproved 'nanufactunng efficiency with reduced losses & costs.

+lmproved quality and production meeting customef requlrement

3. Future Plan of Action:

+lncreasect focus on customrzed Droduct deliverables aligning In line wrth strategic business partners.

+lmproved orocess operatton with reduced process wastage deboftlenecking of processes, equipment and quality issues

4. Expenditure on R&O: charged under primary heads of accounts

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: (Amount in Rs i

Foreign exchangs srrlge
Foreign exchange earntng
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ANNEXURE.D

Form No. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31st illarch 2018

[Pursuant to sectton 92{3) of the CompaniesAct 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management andAdministration)

Rules 2014)

II, PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COIIPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the totai turnover of the company shall be stated:-

III. PARTICLARS OF HOLDING SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

tV. SHAREHOLDII{G PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percenbge of Total Equity!

i) Category-wrse Share Holding

I. REGISTRATIONANDOTHERDETAILS:

i) CIN: r 74899HR1 S72PLCOO6203

ii) Reoistratron Date lOth Julv. 1972
iii) Name of the Company BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED
iv) Cateoorv / Sub-Cateqory of the Comoanv: I isterl Prrfrlic ComnAnv Limited bv Share Caoital
v) Address of the Reqistered ofiice and contact details Sector 25 Plot No.5. Ballaboarh Harvana 12100/,
vi) Whether listed company Yes
vii)Name Address and Contact detaiis of Registra. and
Transfer Agent. if any

Skyiine Financiai Serv,ces (P) Ltd

D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industriai Area, Phase-1
New Delhr - 110 020
Ph +91-11-40450193 to 97
Email admin@skYlinerta.com

Sl. No. Name and Dascription of main products / services
NIC Code of

ProducU
service

the % to total turnover of the
company

1 INDUSTRNL GASES . OXYGEN 2844 93.81%

Sl. No.
Name and address of the
Company CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary / Associate

% of Shares
Held

Applicable
Section

1 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Categorv of
Shareholdefs

No of shares held at the beqinninq of the vear No of shares held at the end of the vear o/oChange

ounng
the vearDemat Physicai Total Yo of Total

Shares
Derna! Physical Total

% of Tota
Shares

A. Promoters
1) lndian

a)lndividual/ HUF 605041 232610 E37651 36.?, 605041 232610 837651 5b.21 0

b) Central Govl
c) State Govt(s)
d) Bodies Coro 1 00325 63500 1 63825 708 1 00325 63500 1 63825 708
e) Banks I Fl

fl Anv Other
Sub-total iA) (1) 70536€ 296110 1001476 43 30 705366 2961 1 0 1001476 43.30

a) NRls - Individuals
b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies fiorp
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Categct'v cf
Sharehoicie!'s

No of shares held at the begrnnrng of the year No of shares held at the end of the year %Change
ounnq

the vearDemat Physrcai Totai
% of Total

Shares
Demai Physicai Totai

% of Total
Shares

d) Banks i Fl

e) Anv Othef
Qr rh ta+al , A 1\

Total shareholding
of Promote,
(A) =
{A)(1)+{Ari2 j

705366 2961 1 0 1 001 476 43 30 705366 2961 1 0 1 001 476 43.30

B. Public Shaiehoidin<
1. Institutions
a) Mutual l-uncts

b) Banks trl 300375 300375 12 99 300375 300375 I Z,YY

c) Centra! Govt
0) Staie Govttsi
e) Venture Caoital Funds

fl Insurance Comoenies
g) Flls
h\ Earaiaa \lanrnrar'f | \/rvrvr w!'!rqrL

Caprtal Funcls
Others iSoecifv)

Subtotal (B)( '1 300375 300375 12.99 30037s 300375 12 99

2. Non- Institutrons
a) Bcdies Coi-p I ZOOI 1 09726 I LZJv I 7472 i49726 I to/Jo 505
i) lndian
) Overseas

b) Individuals
i) lndividua,
sharehoiders hoicirn{
nominal share captta
uoto Rs. 1 iakh

I 8706 1 489032 676093 29 23 21 3384 468577 681 961 29.48

ii) Individua!
shareholders holdrn!
nomrnal share €pnar rr

exge5s of Rs 1 takf,

208550 208550 902 208550 208550 9.02

c) Others U 000 U 000
d) Trust 10c 100 c00 100 100 0.00

e) NBFC
recristered wrth RBI

45C 450 002 450 450 0.02

0 Non Resdent Indianr 60c 500 0.03 100 100 0.00
q) Restdent Indtan Hu 2151 2151 0.us 2364 2344 0.1

ilcleanna member Hous( 783 0.03 775 775 0.03

sub-totai {ts){z) 203E1 E0/308 1U]r116 43 72 224265 TRARA? 1011118 43. tZ
Total Publrr

Shareholdtng
191=1BX1rr BX2)

2Oj8 1 C 11 0768,3 1311493 ah ,,(] ??4?65 1087728 1 311491J 56 70

C Shares held by
Custodian tor

GDRs &.a.DRs

Grand Tota; rA+B+C) 9091 7€ 1 403793 231 2969 100 :,ZYOJ I 1 383338 2312969 100
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(ii) Shareholding ot Promoters.

sl.
No,

Shareholder's Name

Shareholding at the
beginning of the

Shareholding at the
end of the year

No. of
Shares

)/o of total
Shares
of the

o/o ot
Shares

Pledoed/

No. of
Shares

% of tota
S ha res
of the

o/o ot
Shares

Pledqed/

%change

h

1 Balwan Sinoh 75 U.UU o.oo o

a Hari Prasad Purba 75 000 0 75 U.UU

? Shvsn Mohan 75 000 0 000 0

4 Shachi Bhardwal 150 0.01 0 CU 0.01 0

Ashok Kumar Garg 1 075 0.05 IJ 075 nnq U

b B ( Ratna Karan Karup & 150 005 0 50 uu5
Matesh Minal 005 n RN 0

6 Sangita Bdtal 1 500 U, Ut) n 500 u.ub 0

Kanakshi Bhardwal 2000 009 n 2000 u.u9 u

10 Padnnia Bhardwal 2000 009 0 20gg o09 U

1'l Suresh Xumar Sharma 85445 3.69 0 85445 369 0

t1 Chstan Kumar Chaturyedi 5125 v.2t 0 51 25 vlz 0

1? Rakesh Samrat Bhardwaj 7740 0 7740 n??

14 Suresh Krymar Sharma and Tara Oevi Sharma 8951 n?o n 6951 n 20 o

at Himanshu Sharma and Jaya Sharma 1 0000 043 0 1 0000 043 n

'16 Tara Oevi Sharma And Suresh Kumar Sharma 1 0000 0.43 0 1 0000 043 n 0

1 Kanta Oevi Bhadwai 14485 n 14485 063 n

16 T. I{. & Chaturvedi 1 6000 0.69 0 1 6000 U.bY

IJ Suresh Kunrar Shanna And Sons HUF SYUUU 255 U f,YUUU zc, U U

20 Vivek Sharma 41 500 |.tv 0 41 500 179 U 0

21 Himanshu Sharma 62800 272 U 62800 2.72 U

22 Deepthi Sharma 78900 3.41 U 78900 341
23 Bamruo Sharma And Sons HUF 64000 277 0 6d000 277
24 Java Sharma 63500 z ta n 63500 275
25 Tara Dwi Sharma 127700 552 127700 552 0

26 Surash Kumar Sharma & Himanshu Sharma 173255 749 173255 749

27 Trinitron Controi Sysrem (F) Ltd 1 500 006 fi 1 500 006 n n

28 lndo Electrrc 009 2000 009 n

29 Maharaia Sales Corpn (0m Prakashl 50000 z. to 50000 216

30 Bhagaurati Steel Private Limiled 1 00325 4.34 0 1 00325 434 n

11 thsgwsti Gases ltd 1 0000 043 n , nnnn 043 n n

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if thGre is no change

sl.

No

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No of
sharrs

% of total shares
of the company

No. of
sharrs

% of total shares
of the company

1 At the beginnrng of the year 101476 43.30oA 1001476 43.3AYo

Date 'r.,rse 
lnc.ease,/Decrease in Prornoters Share holding

ctunng tns year specrfytng the reasons for increase/de-
crease re g allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc)

NIL CHANGES DURING THE PERIOD,

At the end of the year 101476 43 30% 1001476 43.30o/o
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(iv)Shareholding Pattem of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

sl. Shadrff H at th hFrrrq ild of tlE vs Cumulailve Shareholding during the yeat

G, C..r ^l ,h.I^nlllu, LoL' r rr,.,!9'v

ehrroholdor c

I "{ h.J"l* 
^{ 

&
UE

l--'^^-^/t-.^^.-
R€esm

u^l [^ldJ&^J&

ffi

I Erhar Slsle lodustfial 300000 12.97 01.04.201 / 0 300000 17.91

l)weioormnt Nil Movement

Durino The Year

300000 12.57 31.03.201 B 0 300000 12.97

S.( Steet fot Ird 105000 4.54 01.04.201 i 0 105000 q.vl

ltlil Movement

During The Year

A E'

Bhaska' Sharma 41 710 r.8 0r.04.201 7 0 41 710 t"u

Nil Movement

Durms The Year

41 it0 1.8 3r.03.2018 0 41 710 1.8

Galma Sharma 41 710 1.8 01 04.201 7 0 41 710 '1.8

Nil Movernent

0urino The Year

1.8 3i.03.20i8 i.8

3. Rateer Sharma 4l 7t0 1.8 01.04.201 i 0 41 710 1.8

Nil Movernent

0urinq The Year

41 710 1.8 31.03 201 8 0 41110 1,8

0. Surr,a' jharrr,a 4t!lu t.6 ut.u4.lutl 4lltu

ftlil Movement

Durinq The Year

11 710 1.8 31.03.2018 0 41 710 1.8

7 Itlehe Sharma 41 710 'i.8 0'1 04 2017 0 4t 7!0 !.8

Nil Movement

Durmo The Year

41 710 1.8 31 .03.2018 0 41 710 1.8

I Madhuben Dhrrailal 10000 0,43 01.04.20i.; 0 10000 0.43

6andh Nil Movemenl

Durino The Year

10000 0.43 31.03.201 8 0 10000 0.43

I Pra!rL Barendra Gandhr 10000 0.4,? u.44.2017 B 10000 0.43

[!il Movement

0uring The Yea

10000 043 31.03.20i 8 0 r0000 0.43

10 Viput Baendrabha,

Eendn

r0000 0.4i1 01.04.201 7 0 10000 0.43

0urino The Year

10000 0.43 31 .03.20 r B 0 10000 0.43

ll. Ralmnra Dhtralai

Ganrh,

r0000 0.43 01.04.201 7 0 10000 0.43

Nil Movement

Ourino The Year

10000 0.43 31.03.201 8 0 10000 0.fi

26



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

(v) Shareholding of Dirctors and Key Managerial Personnel :

V,INDEBTEDNESS

lndebtediless of ihe Company inciuding interest outstandinElacciued bui not due foi paymeni

$ndddm a te hnrrrn ild otfu ys Cumulative Shareholdrn0 dunng the yeal

lt^
A Directors sl€cs

a ^1.-rJA* ^a 
&

dtrlEtv
BE ilrlr coJEtuvur csE

sharslnldino
flwt

tL ^l

dms

! ^tr-.J-aa ^, &

OIIIEW

Suresh Kumaf Sharm; 8544b 3.69 01.04.201 7 0 6544b ?RO

Nil Movement

Drrinq The Year

85445 3.69 31 .03.2018 0 85445 J.O 5

2. Himanshr, Sharma 62800 2.t2 01.04.201 / 0 62800 2.72

Nil Movemmt

Durino The Year

62800 272

Jaya Shatma 63500 0r.04.201 7 63500 2.75

Nil Movement

Durino The Year

63500 2.75 31.03.201 8 0 63500 2.75

A Biprn Eihart lai 0 01.04.201 7 0

0 0 31 .03 201 8 0

5. Jagdish Chan&a

Kaushiff

0 0 01.04.201 0

0 0

B Kev Manageriar

Personnet

1 Sukanta

Bhattarchanee

0 0 0l.04.201 7 0

0 0 31 .03.20r I 0

L ftiiu ijariran, l] ut.u4.lu | / U

0 0 31 .03.201 8 0

Secur€d toans
ercludino dmosits

Unsecured
loans

0eposits
l0Ial

lrldebtedness

lndebtednoss at the beginning of the financial year:

i)Princioat Amount 12 52.25 771 0 12 52.25 77 1

ii)lnterest due but not pard 0 U

iii)lnteresl accrued but not due 6 1 J.U; 0 8,13,877

Total(i+ii+iii) 12.60,39 648 n 12,60,39,648

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year:

Additton 9 16.12.739 0 9,16,1 2,739

Reductron 10.20 48 149 n 10,20,48,1 49

Net Change (1 ,04 35 410) (1 ,04,35.410)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i)Principai Amouni i i .48.69 866 U U ii ,48,89,868

ii) lnterest due but not patd 0 n

iiii lnterest accrued but not due 7 14 370 n U 7,14.374

Total (i+ii+iii) 11 56 04 23E n 0 11,56.04,238
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Name of M0lWT0l Manager

v as off orwisons conlaarcd in ssction I 7{l } 0l the Inc0m.tat

lbl \/elue 0{ psrqursnes uis 1 712l Incone tax

icl Prolils n lieu 0i saiary under secil0n 1 7{3} 0f incotn€ tsx Act. I 96i

Ihe rem0norati0n is within linit prescribsd under the Companix Act 201 3Ceiling as per the Acl

A.Remuneration to Di rector,Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

B.Remuneration to other directors:
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGERIWTD

SI
Particdars of Remuneration Name of Oirec!ors Totai

Amount {Rs.)Mrs Java Sharma Mr. Ja0dish Chanfta fdushk Mr Eroin Hrhail Lal

Inde0endent urrset0rs

Fee r0r attending board Norrnitee mselings 10,000 r0,000 20,000

' 0lhers. obas€ soecrtv

Tolal j l 10,000 10.000 20,000

0tlEr ilon-Executiw Drcctors

tee i0r atlefldmg board csmrtls€ rneslngs 10 000 r0,000

Comrnssnn

'0lhers, olease s0ocfy

lotat i21 r0,000 10.000

Iotrl l8l =1 I '?) IU,UUU ru,uuu JU,UUU

Ceiling as per tl€ Act The rsnunsation is withio limit plescribed under the Cornpaties Act 201 3

Jt.
Pff ticrJs{s of Rsnunerataon ( Key M anagerbl Persoffdl l0tal

Amount {Rs.)cE0 nEn companY smretsrY

I ltlame Mr Sukanta Bhattarchariee Miss Ritu Oarnani

Gross salary

{ai Saiari as 0gr orovasions conlained in soctsn I 7ii i

ol the Incofie.lsr Act, 1961

NOT

APPLICABIE

z.0t.uuu 6,22,926

(b) Valus 0f pequbrles uls1 7(2) lncune-tar Act. lgtil

lcl Prcfits in lieu of salarr undet section 17131

Income Tar Act. 1961

2 Stocl 0ption

3 Snnat Equly

Comrxsstonr

as t. ot 0rofri

0tn€rs. sp€cttY

0tl€rs tlease stscifv

Tolai 3,5 7,926 2,65,000 6,22,926
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VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES;

Twna I Section of the
''Fv i Companies Act

Brief
Description

Details of Penalty /Punishment
Compounding fees imposed

Authority IRD /
NCLT i COURTJ

Appeal made, if
any, (give d€tail6)

A. COMPANY

Psnahv

Purxstrnenl

Compounding

B. OIRESMRS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

c. fifiEB oFHCERS ll oEfAUtr

Pmeltv

Punishrnent

Compounding

AT.INP(UREE

DETATLS PERTA|NING rO REHUNFRATONAS REQUTRED UNDER SECTION {97{12) OFTHE COMPANIESACT,2013 READ

w|TH RULE 5{1)OFTHE COMPANIES(APPOINTMENTANDREMUNERATION OF MANAGERIALPERSONNEL) RULES,2014.

i) The percentage Increase rn remuneration of each Director chief Financial officer and company secretary during the

financial yea' 2017-18 and ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the

Company for ihe financiai year 2017-18 are as uncjer

Note: No othei Director other than the Managing Director and Whole Time Director rsceived any iemuneration other than sitting

fees ctunng the finanqal yeat 201'7-18

ii) In the financral year there was an increase of 18.88% in the median remuneration of employees

iii) There were 40 permanent emoloyees on the rolls of comDany as on March 31. 2018.

iv) The Average percentage lncrease made in the salarres of employees othel than the managerial personnel in the financial

year Z0i7-11-was 35 21 irvhereas the increase in the managerral remuneration for the same financial year was 16.34o/o.

v) lt is herebv affirmed that the remuneration paid during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 201 8 is as per the Remuneration

Poiicy of the ')ompany

Place
Date

Kolkata
18 05 2018

For and on behalf of the Board
S K Sharma

Chairman
(DlN:00041150)

s.

llo.

Name ot [-)lrector/

KMP and Desrgnation

R€rrurpratiofl of Directofl KMP for

Frnancial Year m7 l8 {Rs.)

{ irreae h Bsnrsatin n dEFrgf,ii

Ys 2017'18

Rato ot rsnrEaffii ot sl Lretrlto

nglmrurnrrrainof tfi8s
Mr. Himanshu Sharma. MD 22,84,994 38.45 tb.5z

lllr.Suresh Kumar Sharma !4/TD l 3.08.226
rn no s.4s

? Mr. Sukanta Bhattachariee, CFO 3.5 7 326 16.87 I.DY

Ms. Ritu Damanr CS 2,65 000 9.43 t.Jl
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lndependent Auditors' Report

Tn

The ilembers of Bhagawati Oxygen Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bhagawati Oxygen Limited (hereinafter referred to as
'the Company'i whrch co!'npnse the balance sheet as at 31st March 2018. the statement of profit and loss including other
comprehensrie lncome the statement ot cash flows and the statement oi changes In equity for the year then ended, and a
summary o{ srgnificant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Companv s Board of Drrectors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") with .esoect to the oreparation of these lnd AS financlal statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, flnencral pedcr!'nance including othe!"ccmpt'ehensive lncot'ne cesh flows enC changes an equity-of the Ccmpany tn

a@ordance w1h the accounting principles generally accepted rn India. including the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS)
prescribed i:nder Section r3iof the Act read with relevant rules rssued thereunder, This responsibility also includes
maintenance cf adequate accounting records In accordance wrth the provrsions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the

Company ano ror preventing and deteaing frauds and other iriegularities; selection and appiication of appropriate accounting
policies, making ludgments and estimates that are reasonable and pi'udent: and design, implementation and maintenai-ice cf
aoequate ,nreri6l financrar controls, that were operating ettectiveiy ior ensuring the accuracy and compieteness of the

accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentatton ol the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair

view and are free from materral misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsrbrtity rs to express an oDinron on these Ind AS frnancial statements based on our audit. We have taken Into

account the provis,ons of the Act. the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit repor Jnder the provtstons of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audrt rn accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those

Standards requrre that we comply with ethical requrrements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whethaf the Ind AS ftnanciai statements are free from matefiai mlsstatement.

An audit Invotves performrng procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the lnd AS

financial state!-nents The Orocedures selected depend on the audito!"s ludgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material mrsstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments. the

auditor consrders Internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the lnd AS financial statements that give

a ttue and fa!{ vrew i,t o,de{ io design audit procetlures tl}at a.e appropriate ifi the ciicuirstanrxs. An audit also irrcludes

evaluating the approprrateness of the accounttng polrcles useci and the reasonableness of the accountlng estimates made by

theCompanvsDirectors aswell asevaluatingtheoverall presentationof thelndASfinancial statements

We believe that the audit evrdence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on

the Ind AS financia! statements

Opinion
In our oprnrc,^ and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the aforesaid Ind AS financial

statements grve the Information required by the Act rn the manner so requrred and give a true and fair view in conformity with

the accountr-ng prrncrples generally accepied in India including the Ind AS. of the state of afiairs (financial position) of the

Company a* it 3rst tr4arcti2018 ind its profit (financial performance including othercomprehensive income), its cash flows

and the chanqes rn equrty tor the yea. ended on that date

Other Matters

The comparatrve frnancral rnformation of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2017 and the transition date opening

balance sheet as at l st April 2016 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on the previously tssued statutory

financial statements orepared rn accordance with the Companres (Accounting Standards) Rules. 2006 audited by the prede-

cesscr auditors whcse audrt reports fcr the year ended 31st Merch 201 7 dateC 1 8th !t'4ay 201 7 and fcr the year ended 31 st

March 2016 Cated 30th May 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial staiements. as adjusted for the

difierences .n rhe accountrng principles adopted by the Company on transrtion to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us

Our opinion 's not qualified rn respect of above matter

Repod on ilrher Legai aild Reguiatory Requirements

1) As requrred by the Companres (Auditor's Report) Order. 2016 ('the Order') rssued by the Central Government of India tn

terms .1r sub-sectron rtit of section 143 of ihe Act, we grve rn the Annexure-'A', a statement on the matters specified

in the caragraph 3 and 4 of the said order

2) As requrred bv Sectron 143 (3) of the Act. we tePort that _
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a)

c)

f)

we have sought and obtarned all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessarv for the purposes of our audit

in our oprnton proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examine|,.,on of those books

the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the statement of cash flow
and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

in our oprnron the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
1 33 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014

On the basrs of written rep!esntations received from the di!'ectors as on 31st t'Iarch 2018. and taken on record by the
Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2018 from being appointed as director in terms

of Sectron 164(2) of the Act

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effecliveness of such controls. refer to our report in Annexure-'B' and

with respect to the oiher matters to be included in ihe Audiiors' Report in accordance with Ruie i i of the Companies (Audii

and Auditors) Rules. 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS financial statements.(Refer
Note 37 to the Ind AS financial statements).

the Company ctid not have any long-term contracts Includlng denvatrve contracts for whtch there were any material

foreseable losses.

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and Protection Fund by the

Companv

A JUIII

partner Place: Kolkata

Membership No. 006308 Dated: 30th May 2018

Annexure-'A' to the lndependent Auditors' Report

(Re,bred to in Paragraph 1 of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements" section of our Audit Report)

(i) In respect of Fixed Assets

{a) The Comoany has marntained proper records showing full particulars
aecata

(b) As explarned to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified
material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification

(c) According to the inforrnation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the

Company title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(ii) !n respect of Inventc!'ies as explained tc us. the physrcal !,erification of ln.rentories has been conducted by the

management at reasonable intervals In our oprnron, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size

of the company and nature of its business. The company has maintained proper records.of inventory. As explained to
us, there was no material discrepancies noticed on such physical verification of inventories.

(iii) Accordrng to the information and explanation given to us. the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unse-

cr.lrecl to Jompantes firms. Limited Lratrility Partnerships or other partres covered in the !'egister maintained uncter section

189 of the Companies Act. 2013 as suctl provisrons of paragraph 3(iii) of the said order are not appliceble.

(iv) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has complied with the

orovisrons of section 185 and 196 of theAct. with respecl to the loans and investments made.

(v) The Ccr.npany has nct accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning cf directives issued by the Reserve

Bank of india and provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any othei relevant piovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the

rules framed there under According to the information ind explanatrons given to us, no order has been passed by the

Companv Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal on

the company In respect of the aforesaid deposits.

(vi) Basecj on the information availalrle and explanetrons given to us the rnainlenancE of Cost records has not been specified

by the ientr.al Governmenl under section 148(1) of the Ccmpanies Act. 2C13 for any of the products rnanufac{ured by

the company

(vii) (a) Accordrng to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of' 
accounts the Company rs generally regutar in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Income

si

FoTCHETAN & CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No 321'1 51 E

including quantitative details and situation of fixed

by the management at reasonable intervals No
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Tax Wealth Tax Servrce Tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise. Value added Tax, Goods and Services tax, Cess and
any other statutory dues as applicable with the approprrate author(ies. There were no un-disputed statutory dues as

at ihe end of the jear outstanding for a period of more than six months f!'om the date they became payable

Ac}c4'ng tc the Infoi.mation end explanaticns given tc us anC as per the recoi'ds of the Company examined by us. the
parlcuiaG of dues oi Sale iax, incoile iax arrd Centrai excise. which lrave iioi been deposited oir account of ariy
dispute as at 31st March 2018 are given below:

(viii) In our oornron and according to the Information and explanations -orven 
to us the Company has not defaulted in reDayment

of dues ro anv frnancral Institutions or banks. The company has not rssued any debentures during the year.

(ix) The Compsny did not raise any money by wav of jnitial public offer or further public offer lrncluding debt instruments)

durinq fhe year In our opinion and according to the information and explanatlons given to us. the term loans have been

appiiec ;or ihe purpose for which they were ralseci.

(x) no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or ernployees has been noticed or reported during the year

(xi) AccordrngtothetnformationandexplanattonsgrventousandbasedonourexaminationoftherecordsoftheCompany.
ih6 Ccmpen.i has ca!C/p!.ov!ded for nanegeriat remuneretron rn eccor'Cance rvith the requisrte approvals mgndated by the

provisrons oi sectton 197 read wrth Schedule V to the Act

(xii) In our oprnron and accordtng to the information and explanatrons given to us the Company is not a Nidhi Company as such

provrs'nns cl paragraD!' 3{xil) of the Order' 3re ?ct applicable

(xiii) Accordrnq to the Informatron and explanations grven to us and based on our examination of the records of the company.

all transactions with the felated panres are in compliance with Section 177 and Sec{ion 188 of theAct where applicable

and detarls of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable

accotinrrno standards

(xiv) Accordrng to the Information and explanations grven to us an(l based on our examination of the records of the Company.

the Company has not made any preferential allotment or orivate placement of shares or fully or partly convertible

debentures duflng the year

( xv ) Accordrng to the rnformation and explanations grven to us and basecj on our examination of the records of the Company,

the Comganv has not entered into non-cash transactrons with drrectors or persons connected with them as such

provtsrons of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applrcable

(xvi) Acccrdrng to the rnfcrrnation and explanations g;ven to us thc Cornpany is not required tc be registered under secticn 45-

lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934

ForCI{FTAlv 8 CC

Chartered Accountants

FirmRegn tlc 321151E

A Som

Partner

Membership No 006308

Fiace Koikata

Dated: 30th May.2018

Name of the

Statute

Nature ol
dues

Amount

{!n Rs.)

Period to which the

amount relates

Forum where
pending

I West Bengal VAT

Act & CST Act

VAT & CST 15 18 996i- 2006-07 WB Commercial

Tax Appellate and

Revisional Board

tncoi'ne Tax Act 3 05.320.i 2012-2013 t\rla V^l,,^+,

10 791 101- 2014-15 CIT iApoeal)

Central Excise Act Central Excise 7 24.61 090/" 2010-2011 to

201 5-201 6

CESTAT. KoIKata
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Annexure-'B' to the lndependent Auditors' Report

ReDort on,the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies

Aci, 2013 i"the Act"i

We have audited the Internal financial controls over frnanqal reporting of Bhagawati Oxygen Limited (hereinafter

referrec to as 'the Comoany') as of 31st March 2018 in contunctton with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of

the Comoany ior lne year encjed on tnat ciate.

ilanagement's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Companv's management is responsible for establishing and maintainrng rnternal financial controls based on the

inte!,nar :ontrcl over financiel reporttng criteria established by the Ccmoan'y ccnsidering the essential ccrnpcnents cf

Interna' controt stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Inte!'nal Financral Controls over Financral Reporting issued by the

lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India ('lCAl'l These responsrbilitres include the design, implementation and marnte-

nance lrf adequate tnternal financial controls that were operatrng effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient

conducr if ;ts bijsiness inciuding a'iherence to ,:ompany's poiicies, the safeEi,.iarding of iis assets, ihe prevention and

detectron of trauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable rinancrai Informataon. as required under the Companies Act. 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibrtrty is to express an oprnion on the Company's internal finanqal controls over financial reporting based on

our audit We conducted our audit In accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over

Financrai Reportrng (the 'Gurdance Note") and the Standards on Aud(ing. issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed

under sectron 143( i 0) of the Companies Act. 20t 3, to the e{ent app|cable to an audit of inte!"nal financtal controls. both

apolicabte to an audit of Internal Ftnancial Controls and. both rssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Those Standards and the Gurdance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit

to obtarn 'easonable assurance about whether adequate Interna! financial controls over financial reporting was estab-

lished and rnatntatned and lf such contro!s operated effectrvelr- rn all material fespects.

Our audrr rnvolves performrng procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls

Systern over frnanctal reporting and their operatrng effectrveness Our audit of internal financial controls over financial

reportrnq ,ncluded cbtarntng an understanding of intefnal financial ccntrols cver financial reporting, assessing the risk

that a neteriai weakness exists, and testing and evaiuatrng the desrgn and operating effectlveness of internal control

based ..:rn the assessed rrsk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, including the assessment of the

risks ot materral rntsstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error.

We flettrve that rhe alr.lit evidenc€ we have obtarned iS suffiCient encl appropriate tO provi(Je a besis for Our auclit Opinion

on the i:ompany's lnternal financial controls system over financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A companv's rnternai financrai contfoi over financiai repo(ing is a process {iesigned to provide reasonabie assurance

regardrng the reliabilrtV of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes rn

accordance wrth generally accepted accounting principles A company's internal financial control over financial report-

ing indudes those pohges and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail

accuraretv an6 rgrrlV reflect the transactrons and disposrtlons ot the assets of the company, (2) provlde reasonable

assuranc€ that transacttons are recorded aS necessary to permtt preparation of financial Statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
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in accordance with authonzations of management and directors of the company and (3) provrde reasonable assurance

regardrnq orevention or ttmely detection of unauthorized acquisition use, or disposition of the company's assets that

colrld ha\/c a rnatenal effect on the financial statements

lnherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls ovgr Financial Reporting

Because of the rnherent limitations of internal finanoal controls over financial reporting including the possibility of

collusron or rmproper ;nanagement override of controls. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not

be detected Aiso. piolections of aily evaluation of ihe inteinai financial contiois over financial iepoi'ting to futiire pei-iods

are subtect to the risk that the internal financiar control over finanoal reporting may become inadequate because of

change-s ,n conditions or that the degree of compliance wrth the po|cies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Accordinq to the informatton and explanations given to us and based on our audit, in our opinion, the Company has

generaltv lTraintarned rn all materral respects, an adequate Internal financial controls over financial reporting and such

'61s1131 
rrnancral controls over financial reporting were generally operating effectively as of 31st March 2018. based on

the inte'na! cont.oi over financial !'epo!'ting criteria establlshed by the Compan;, consideling the essential components or

internat lontrols stated rn the "Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Ftnancial Reporting" issued by

the Instnute of Chartered Accountants of India

FoTCHETAN & CO

Chartered Accountants

FirmRegn No 3?1151E

A Som

Padner

Membership No 006308

Placer Kolkata

Dated 30th May,2018
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BALANCE SHEETASAT3ISt MARCH 2018
Particulars
Assets
f{on-Current Assets
a) Property. Plant and Equrpment
b) Capital Work-in-Progress
c) Financiat Assets

i) Investments
ii) Loans
iii) Other trrngnsrai Assets

d) Other Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
a) Inventofles
b) Financtal Asseis

i) Trade Receivabies
ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
iii) Other Bank Balances
iv) Loan-<
v) Other Frnandal Assets

c) Other Current Assets

Total Assets

Eguity and Liebitities
Equity
a) Equity Share Capital
b) Other Equfv

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
a) Financial irabilities

i) Borrowrngs
ii) Other Frnancral Liabilttes

b) Deffered r.ax Lrabrlities (Net)

Current Liabilities
a) Financiai Liabilities

i) Borrowtngs
ii) Trade Payables
iii) Other trinancral Liabilities

b) Other QLrrrsnt Liabilities
c) Current Tax Liabalities

Total Equitv and Lrabrlitres

Company Overyrew
Significant Accounting Policies &
Notes on Accounts

27.58.96,717 29,76,20,355

r.loTE
f.lo

J

4
5

;

AS AT
March 31. 2018

14 38.80 735

2 01 13.700
68,08,925
46.54.750

916.828

" 
94.4t,21 |

6.58,841
6.03,93,068

1.40,090
22.74 172

AS AT
March 31. 2017

16,23,79,546

2,37,71.742
68.03,025

15,51 ,144

3,49,10.710
7,08,833

4,30,69.596
2,24,194

12.96.297

Amountin Rs.

AS AT
April 01. 2016

2,12,86,116
34,85,493

2,14,86,175
40.29.588

2.45.000

41 ,07.247

2.84.10.454
3.24,255

4,12,10.287
2.10.820

14,26,592

8

10
1a

12
{2
14

15,14,69,130

t3
16

11

18
IV

20
)4

22
ZJ
24

1

I

2.31.29.690

? 17.72,560
714,370

1A 44,15.247
55,88,390
13.50,603
51.4U b lJ

4,63,17.549
8.13 877

8,83,17.334
1,88,31.890

10,19,420
DI,dC J I J

19.22.855

55,66,053
1,63,70,834

9,03,631
45.27,473

27.68.96,717 ?9,76,20,355 15,14,69,1 30

2,31,29,690

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report attached of even date

For Chetan & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 321151E

A. Som
Partnar

{Membership No - 006308)

For and on benalf of the Board of Direclors

Suresh Kr Sharma

(DrN 00041150)

Himanshu Sharma
Managing Director
(DlN :00041181)

Plac€ Kolkata Sukanta Bhattachariee Ritu Damanr
Date 30th Mav 2018 Chref Frnance Officer Company Secretary



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31St MARCH 2018
t,lOTE For the Year ended
l.lo March 31. 2018

8,58,96,126

27,U,O81
28,04,992

6,34,316

23,02,003
2,74,11,988

9d,bb,955
67,48,442

1,85,95,400
2,33,28,931

{1,98,449}
34,000

Amountin Rs.

For the Year ended
March 31. 2017

11 ,01 .02

Particylars
l. Inconre

Revenue from Operatrons
Other tncome
Total Income

Expenses
Cost ot Materral Consumeel
Purchases of rraded Goods
Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods. Worl tn

Progress & Stock rn Trade
Excrse Duty on Sale ot Goods
Manufactuflng and operat,ng Expenses
Emoiovee Benefil Expenses
Finance Costs
Deprecratron and Amortrsation Expense
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

Profit before Tax

Tax Expense:
Curren'f Tax (Mrnrmum Alternate Tax)
Deferred TA.y

Profif for the period

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that wll not be classified to statement of Profit or Loss
Remeasurement of deftned post employment benefit plan
Income Tax Effect

Vll. Total Comorehensive Income for the Year

Et.6,^^c ner trnrlt'r ShafgLq, ,,'YJ y!i LYuIrt v

Bastc
Dilutec

Company Overvtew
Signifirant Ae;countrng policies and Notes on Accoufits

n?
03

25
26

ia
29

1a

3
33

I 0,00,76,,103 11 ,62,59,206

4.A0.76.717
88,45,610
25,56,103

oo ol Aqn
a ch ah olaI JU.JJ U*'

75,49,603
1A nA 7q1

41,76,301
1,10,82,449

ffi
55.99.292 1,5'l,34,270

34

ilr.

tv.

V.

vt.

9.65.203 26,29.011
5,47,266 23,09.282

ffi+u,oo,orJ I,ul,i'g,J/,

45,653
(8,000)

ffi
1.77
1.77

441
441

The accompan/rnE notes form an integral pad of ihe Financrai Siateinenis
As per our repori aitached of even daie.

For Ciretan & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firrn Regn No. 321151E

A Som
Partne!'
(ilembership No - 006308)

Place Kolkata
Date 30th May 2018

For and on behatf of the Board of Dtrectors

Suresh Kr Sharma

{DrN 00041150)

Sukanta Bhattachaqee

Himanshu Shanna
Managing Diredcr
(DrN 00041181)

Ritu Damani

Chref Finance Officer Connpany Secretary



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2018

a. Equity Share Capital Amount in Rs

Balanc€ at 1 April 2016

Changes rn Equity Share Capital During the Year.

Balance at 31 tarch 2017

Changes rn Equitv Share Capital During the Year,

Balance at 31 ilarch 2018

2,31,29,690

2,31,29,690

2,31,29,69;

b. Other Equity

Capital
Reserve

lnvestment
Allowance
Reserve

Retarneo
Earnings

Other
Comprchensive

lncome

Total Oth€r
Equity

Balanee at 1 April 2016

ProfiV(Losst for the year

Other Comorehenstve Income

I C.UU,UUU 59,929 9,23.36,035

1,01,95.977

i1,68,574)

45.653

V,JT,ZI .JJIJ

1,01,95,977

45.653

Balance at 31 March 2017 I9,UU.UUU ov.Y4Y 10,25,32,012 11,22,921J 10,39,69,020

Balance at 1 April 2017 r 5,00,000 59,929 't0,2s,32,012 ('t,22,9211 10,39,69,020

ProfiU(Losst for the year

Other Conrfxehensrve lncome

40.86,823
(1,98,44S)

40,86,823

I l.vo,++Y,

Balance at 31 tarch 2018 15,00,000 59,929 10,66,18,835 (3,21,370) 10,78,57,394

For Chetan E Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 321151E

A. Som
Partner
{Membership No. - 00630E}

Place Kolkata
Date 3cth May 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

Suresh Kr Sharrna
Charrman
(DlN 00041150)

Sukanta Bhattacharjee
Chref Finance Officer

Himanshu Sharma
Managing Director
(DrN 00041181)

Ritu Damani

Company Secretary



BHAGAWAT| OXYGEN LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 i/larch 2018 Amount in Rs

A. eash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before Tax
Adjustments for
Finance Cost (Net)
Depreciatron/ Amorttsataon
(Gain)/Loss {rorn Redemplron of Mutual FUnds

Dividend Income
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

(lncreaselr Decrease in
lnventoifes
Non-CurreniiCurreni Frnanoai and Oiher Assets
Trade Payables Other Financial Liabilitles and Current Liabilittes
Cash Generated from Operation

Direct Tax Pard
Net Cash tlow from Ooerating Activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase cr Frxed AssetslCWlP
lnvestrnen! Dgde dlrfrng the year
Pioceeds rion-' sale of lnvestmenis
lnterest Recerved
Dividend Recerved
Net Cash rrsed in Investing Activities

e . Cash Flow from Ftnancing Activlties

Proceeds rrom Borrowings
Repaymenr of Borrowings
Interest Pard
Nel Cash used in Financing Activities

N6t Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash & Cash Equivalents-Opening Balance

Cash & Cash Equivalents-Closing Balanee

31 March 2018

55.99.292

22,06,779
1,85,95,400

31 lHarch 20'17

1.51 .34.270

( 14,40,236)
41.76,301

(9 02 9411 -

15 33 q36i i10 16 956)

(1.31.55.466) 33.80.338
1 ,13,03,796 1,42,30,280

2.49,64,594

a at alc

t I r,Jv.b46)

(96,589)

45,60,983

1,60,97,873
(2,45,44,989)

7,08,833

6,58,841

1,68,53,379

AE AA IA?

t6J,3V.34Ul

(4.17.84.238)
t)t 9F 5A7\

33 77.28;

12.71.45.975

3,21,255

7,08,833

(a6.20 8at r (3,2.3,2.35,)

66.82.955 1.39.07,045

5.33.936 10.16.956
85.62.118 (13.96.

(68,47,949) (9,92.874)
(1 .52.95.0651 ',t 2.61.53.101

The accomDanyrng notes form an rntegral part of the Financtai Statements

As per our reporl attached of even date

For Chetan & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 321'151E

A Som
Partner
{Membership No - 006308}

Place Kolkata
Date 30th May ?01 8

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Suresh Kr Sharma
Charrman
(DiN 00041150)

Sukanta Bhattachariee
Chref Finance Officer

Hirnanshu Sharma
Managing Director
/nrN ono411R1\

Ritu Damani

Company Secretary



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

1. Companv Overview

Bhagawatr Oxygen Limited ('the Company") is a public limrted company incorporated in India, having its registered office
situated plot 5 Sector 25 Ballabgarh. Haryana- 12'1004 The Company has its shares listed on Bombay Stock Exchange
(BSF) Bnagawat' Oxygen Limited rs a manufacturing and en_oineering company with core focus on industrial gas
manufactunng. technology, system and equipments.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis ot Preparation

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with Indran Accounting Standards (lnd AS) prescribed under Section
1 33 of the Companres Act 201 3 ("Act") read with relevant Rules These financial statements are prepared in accordance

with hrstorrcal cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values

The Company has adopted all the IndAS and the adoptron was carried out in accordance with IndAS 101- First time

adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally

accepted In India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Acl. read with relevant Rules which was the previous GMP
Recnnci|etrons end descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in note 42

(b) Use of Accounting Ertimates and Assumptions

The preoaratron of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS

requrres management to make estimates and assumptions that affecl the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,

revenue and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilitles at the date of the financial statements. Actual resulis could

differ from those estimates. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements

are prudent and reasonable Any revision to the accountrng estimates is recognized prospectively.

Informatron about crittcel 1r-rdgments rn applying accounting oolicies as well as estimates and assumptions that have the

most srqnrficanr effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabiiiiies wiih|n the next financiai year ate inciuded in ihe
following notes

a Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligations

b: Measurement and likelihood of the occurren€ of provisions and contagencies

c: Recogndion of the Deferred Tax Assetsl Lrabilities

d ) Key assumptrons used in Faar Valuation Methods of Frnancial Assets & Liabilities

c) Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities rs recognized when all significant risks and rewards of

their ownershrp are transferred to the customer as per the terms of the contracl and no $ignificant uncertainty exists

regardrng the amount of the consideration that will be denved from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection

Revenue rs measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and includes excise duty and are net

of relurns and allowances trade discounts vohrme rebales and sales lax

Divideno incorne is recognized when the company's right to rec€ive dividend is established. Interest rncome is recogntzed

using the effectrve Interest method Other claims iincluding claims of price escalation and minimum offrake guarantee) are

recognrzed when there rs a certainty of realization and can be measured reliably.

(d) Property" Plant & Eguipment

Propertv ptant and Equtpment are stated at cost. less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost of Property Plant & Equipment comprises of its purchase price. including import duties and other non-refundable

taxes or revles and any direclly attributable cost of bringing the asset lo its working condit'on for ils intended use Interest

and oihe. frnancrai charges on loans borrowed specificaliy for acquisitron of capital asseis are capitaiized tiil the start of

commerctat production Depreciation rs provided on the strarght line method over the estimated useful lives of assets and

are in trne with the requrrements of Part C of Schedule lt of the Companies Act. 2013. The estimated useful ltves are as

follows
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Building

Plant & Machrnery

Furniture & Frxtures

Office Equipment

Vehicles
Computer

30 Years

8-25 Years
10 Years
J rtdt>

8 Years
3 Years

Advances pard towards the acquisttton of property. plant anci equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is

classified as Capital Advances under other Non-Current Assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date

are drsctosed under'Capital Work in Progress' The cost and related accumulated depreciatlon are eliminated from the

Financrat Statements upon saie or retirement cf the asset and the resultani gains or losses are recognized in the

Stalementof Profit&l.oss Themethodofdepreciation,useful livesandresiclual valuesarereviewedaleachfinaneial
year end

(e) Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets acquired separately are mea$urecj on initial recognition ai cost. Intangibie Assets acquired in a

business combrnation is valued at therr fair value at the date of acquisrtion. Following initial recognition. intangible assets

are carred at cost less accumulated amortizatron and accumulated rmpairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of lntangible Assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

iniangibte Assets wiih finite iives are amoriizeo over ihe usefui economic iife and assessed ior impairment whenever

there rs an indication that the intangible asset may be imparred The amortization period and the amortization method for

an Intangible Asset wtth a finite useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The amortization exp€nse

on Intangrble Assets wrth finite lives is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The Company amortizes intangible

assets rver thetr eslimated useful lives using the straight lrne method.

Intangable Assets with rndefinrte useful lives are not amortlzed. but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or

at the cash€enerating unit level The assessment of indefin[e life rs reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite

life contrnues to be supporteble lf not, the change in useful life from rndefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis

Gains cr rosses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net

disposat proce€ds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss when the

assei rs derecognized

(f) Financial lnstruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

The Company recognizes financial assets and frnancial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the ,nstrument. All financlal assets and liabilities are recognlzed at lat value on initial recognitton, except for trade

receivaDEs whrch are Iniiialiy measureci at transaction grice Transaction costs that are directly ettributabie to ihe

acqurs{ron or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are flot at fair value through profit or loss, are

added to the farr value on rnitial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at

tracle ctate

Subsequent Measurement

a. Non Derivative Financial instruments

(i) Financiat Assets carried at amortized cost

A financrat asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if rt rs held within a business model whose obiective is to

hold ihe asset rn order to collecit contraclual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on

soecified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of orincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
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(ii) Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A finanlar assel is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held withtn a

businesi rcdei whose oblective is achreved by soth colleciing contractual cash flows and selling financtal assets and

the conriactual terms of the finencral asset grve rise on specifred Cates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principar and rnterest on the principal amount cutstanding The Company has made an trrevocable electlon for its

investments whrch are classified as equity instruments to presenl the subsequent changes in fair value in other

comprehenslve rncome bgsed on its business model.

(iii) Financiai Assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financrar asset whtch rs oot classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss

(iv) Finane ial Liabilities

Finandai rrabttittes are subsequently canied at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent

consideratton recogntzed rn a buslness combrnation which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and

loss Fn. trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Baiance Sheet date. the carrying amounts

approyr-3te farr value due to the short m3turity cf these rnstruments

(v) Investment in subsidiaries

Investment In subsdianes is carried at cost in the separate financial statements.

b. Derivative Financial Instrumenis

The Company holds denvattve financral instruments such as forergn exchange forward and option contracts to mltigate

the risr ot changes In exchange rates on foreign currency exposures Such derivative financial instruments are initially

recognrzed at farr value on the date cn which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured

at fatr varue thr6gq11 Drofit or loss and the resultrng exchanqe garns tr losses are Included in other income

Derecognition of Financial Instruments

The company derecognrzes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset

expr!'e ,1. ii transfers ihe financial asset and the trafisfer quaiifies foi deiecognition under lnd AS f 09 A financial liability

(or a par.r of s financrar hability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the

contrac! rs discharged or cancelled or expires

(g) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The C,i-r-,pany uses vaiuaiion techniques thai a.e appropiiate in ihe cii'cufistances and for which siifficient data aie

availabte to measure falr value. maxrmizrng the use of reievant observable inputs and minimrzing the use of unobserv-

able rnputs All methods of assessrng fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never

actuallv be realtzed

Aii assers ano tiabriities for which farr vaiue is measureci or cjisciosea in ihe financiai statements are categorizeci wiihin

the fau vatue hrerarchy described as follows. based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measufement as a whole

!-evet : Quoted (unadtusted,\ ms*et pnces !n sctive marlets for iCentica! assets cr liabilities

Levet , Valuatron techntques for whrch the lowest level input that is srgnificant to the fair value measurement ts directly

or indrrectly observable

Leve! ., Valuatron technrques for which the lowest level rnput that is significant to the fair value measurement ts

unobse'! able

(h) lmpairment

lmparr-rent rs recognrzed based on the following principles
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(i) Financial Assets: The Company recognizes loss allowances using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the

financtai assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss Loss allowance for trade receivables with no

significant financrng component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL For all other financial assets, expected

credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month ECL unless there has been a significant increase in

credit .rsk from rnitiai recognition in which case those are measured at life time ECL. The amount of expected credit

losses tor reversal)that rs required to adJust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be

recognrzed rs recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

(ii) Non-Financial Assets: Goodwill and intangible assets thst have an indefinite useful life are not subjec! to annortization

and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently rf events or changes rn circumstances indicate that they might

be impatred. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the assets carrying

amouitt exceeds tts recoverable amount. The i"ecoverable amount rs the highei of an assets fair value l€ss costs of

disposat and value rn use For the purpose of assessing rmpairment. assets are grouped at the lowest level for which

there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or

groups of assets (cash- generating unit) Non- financial assts other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are

reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of reporting period

(i) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisrons are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is
probable that a cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Contrngent liabtifites are drsclosecj when the Company has a possrble obiigatron or a present obligatlon and tt is probabie

that a cash outflow will not be required to settle the obligation Provisions & Contingent Liabilities are revalued at each

Balance Sheet date Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, when the realization

of income rs virtually certain. then the related asset is not a contingent asset and it is appropriately recognized.

(j) Inventow

The inventorres are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever rs lower except for work in progress and

advertastng material which are valued at cost. The Cost rs calculated on weighted average method. Cost comprises

expendture incurred In the normal course of business in bringing such inventories to its location and includes, where

applicable approprlate overheads based on normal level of activity

(k) Foreign Currency Transactions & Translations

The functronal currency of the Company is Indian Rupee These Financial Statements are presented in lndian Rupee.

Trarrsactiorrs rir forergrr currencies entereci into by the coirpany aie aceounted at the exchange tates prevailing on the date

of the transactlon Garns & losses arising on account of realizatron are accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Monetary Assets & Lrabilities in foreign currency that are outstanding at the year end are translated at the year end

exchange rates and the resultant gain/loss is accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss

(l) Employee Benefits

Defined Contributaon Plan

The Company makes conlributions towards proviclent fund to the regulatory authorities to a defined contribuiion

retiremenr benefit plan for qualifyrng employees. where the Company has no further obligations. Both the employees

and the Company make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund Plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered

emplovee's salary

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in lndia. comprising of Gratuity fund with Life Insurance Corpora-

tion of Indra The Company's liability is actuarially determined using the Projected Unit Credit method at the end of the year
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in accordance with the provrsion of IndAS 19 - Employee Benefits.

The Company recognrzes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability Gains and

losses thfough re-measurements af the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are reccgnized in other comprehenstve

Income and are not reclassrfied to profit or loss ,n subsequent peflocts. The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets,

in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation rs

recognrzed In other comprehensive rncome The effecls of any plan amendments are recognized in the Statement of

Profit & toss

Shor! rerm emptoyee benefits are charged off at the undrscounted amount an the year in which the related services are

rendered

(m) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs diiectiy attribuiable io ihe acqirisition. consti!.iclion or productron of an assei that necessariiy takes a

substantral penod of trme to get ready for its intended use or saie are €pitalized as part of the cost of the asset All other

borrowrng costs are expensed in the period in which they occur Borrowrng costs consist of interest and other costs

that an entity 
'ncurs 

In connection with the borrowing of funds Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to

the extent regarcied as an ad.iustment to the borrowing costs

(nl Leases

Leases under whrch the company assumes substantiallv ali the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as

financr- lesses !,ry'hen acquired. such assets are capttaleeC et fair value cf present vgiue cf the minimurn lease

payments at the rnceptton of the lease. whichever as lower Lease payments under operatrng leases are recognEed as

an expense on a straqht line basis rn net profit In the Statement of Profit & Loss over the lease term.

(o) Government Grants

The C,rnlpanlv recognizes govei'nment grants o'11,-',vhen theie rs reasonable assuiance that the conditions attached to

them shait be complied with and the grants wall be received Grants related to assets are treated as deferred income and

are recogntzed as other Income In the Statement of profit & loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life

of the asset Grants related to Income are recognized on a systematic basis over the periods necessary to match them

with the .eiateci costs which ihey are iniended io compensate and are cjeciucied fronr the expense in ihe staiement of

orofit & ross

(p) lncome Taxes

Income Tax eypense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Currenr tax rs the amount of rncome taxes payable (recoverable) In respect of the taxable profit (tax lossl for a period

Taxabte orofit drffers from "profit before income tax" as regorted in the statement of profit and loss and other compre-

nenstve ,ncome oecause it excludes items of rngome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it

furthe'excludes items that are never taxable or. Ceductible The Company's liability fcr current tax is calculated using tax

rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period

Deferred tax habilrttes are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally

recognrsed for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available

againsr ,irhich ihose deductible temporary differences car. be uiiiised. Such assets and liabilities aie not recognised if

the temporary difierence arises from goodwill or from the rnitial recognition (other than in a business combinataon) of

other assets and irabrlittes tn a transactton that affects nerther the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carryrng ar.lount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the edent

thai ii ,s ro ionger probabie ihai sufficieni iaxabie profiis wiii be avaiiabie lo aiiow ali or part of ihe asset to be recovereo

Unrecognrsed deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting year and are recognised to the extent

that rl ras become probable that sufficient taxable profit wrll be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to

be recovergd
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Defened rax assets and habilities are measured at the tax !'ates that are expected to apply in the period in which the

liability 's setfled or the asset is realised. based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted bV the end ol the reporting period

Current and deferred tax are recognrsed in proftt or loss. except when they !'elate to items that are recognised in other

comprehensive Income or directly in equity, rn which case the current and def'erred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive Income or directly rn equity respectively Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial

accounrrng for a bustness combinatron, the tax effect is rncluded in the accounting for the business combtnation.

(q) Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash anc, Cash Equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an

originar rnatunty of three months or less. which are subiect to an insrgnificant risk of changes in value.

ir) Earning per Share

Basic earnrngs per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of

the Comoany by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average

number or equrty shares outstanding during the oeriod is adjusted fsr svs11e such as bonus issue. bonus elenient in a

rights rssue. share spttt and reverse share sptlt (consolrdatron of snares) that have changed the number of equlty

shares outstandrng. without a corresponding change in resources

{s) Current and Non-Current classification

The Cor"rpany p.esents assets end liabilities !n the Balence Sheet beseC cn currenVncn-current classlficatlon

An asset rs classified as current when il ts.

i) Expecteo to be realised or intended to be sold o' consumed in the normal operating cycle,

ii) Heid pilmarily ior the purpose of tradrng,

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least tlvelve months
6#6r tho .6^^drh^ 

^6fl^dvPvi 
'rIv vv vv

A liabilitv rs classified as current when it rs.

i) lt is exoected to be settled In the normal operating cycie.

ii) lt rs due lo be settled wrthin twelve months after the reponrng penod or

iii) There ,s no unconditionar right to defer settlement of the lrability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All othe, irabrlitres are classified as non-current

Deferrer: tax assets and liabilities are classified as non current

(t) Dividend

pp6r719r4rn 
's made for the amount of an), dividend declared being appropriately autho!'ised and no longer at the d,scretion

of the enlrty on :r before the end of the reporting period Dut not drstributed at the end of the reporttng pertod.

(u) Segment Reporting

Reveni1e & expenses assets & liabilities are identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating

ecttvttles It the com0anY
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BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

AS AT
March 3f . 2018

47,700

25,28,164

r{ {n oqn

16,60,264

16,12,286

16,38,2't 3

13,07,664

22,08,429

AS AT
March 31. 201?

47 700

24,16 886

ln rc Ann

32.91 080

37,61 966

?, RA A2A

13.07 455

6.11 227

Amountin Rs.

AS AT
April 01. 2016

65,700

23,85,436

10.52.780

25.34.480

29.16,461

26,52,819

1 3. 1 2.689

5.65 810

Note 4 I nvestments

Investment carried at Cost
lnvestments in Partnership Firm (Unquoted)
Anchor lnvestments

(i)
Investment carried at Fair Value through P&L
lnvestments in Equity lnstrurnents (Quoted)
ol ldgCwolr lJds LtU
90 000 Equrt_v Shares of Rs 10f each (PY 90 000 equity shares)
Mutual Funds (Quoted)
Reliance ETF Goh BEES (Prev Goldman Sachs Gold BEES)
(925 units F' Y 925 unfts)
SBI Gold GFTS
r /nn ..^;.^ n v ,n n .,^..a,
\rvv ulrLJ
HDFC Top 20C
(34.999 unils P Y 65,815 un'ts)
HDFC Prudence
(54,750 unrts P Y 1 20 952 units)
DSP Black Rock
{57,488 unrts P Y l 32 973 un;tsi
Reliance Gold Savrngs Fund-G
(1,04,680 unrts P Y 1 04 680 units)
Tata Floater trund-G
(838 units o v 248 '.lntts) 

I,ir|

Total (i+iil

Aggregate emountof QuoH Investnents & tailetValue fiereof
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments

Note 5 ioans (Non- Current)
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
(Unsecured. Considered Good)
Earnest Money Deposrt
Security Deposits . with Others

'with Relatec, Perfies
Total

Note 6 Other Financial Assets (Non- Current)
Financial assets carried at Amortised Cost
(Unsecured. Considered Good)
Fired depos,t navrng 4rrginal maturity mo!^e than 12 months
Total

Note 7 Other Non-Current Assets
Unexpired lnterest - Car loan
Caoital Advances
Other Advances
Total

Note I Inventories
(Vatued at Cost, rrnless otherwise stated)
Stock-in-Trade
Others (CVt!!-tders)
Total

Note 9 Trade Receivables
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
(Unsecured. Considered Good)
Trade Recervables

Total

1 ,2,1 .13_700 1.57.71 .742 1 .U.86.175

2,01,13,700 2,37,7',1,742 2,14,86,175

1 ,21 ,13,700
80,00.000

s,59,'t 27
38,49,798

't ,57,71 ,742
80,00,000

5,86,227
38,16,798

1 ,34,86,175
80,00.000

6,84.416
9.45,172

24-00-000 24 00 000 24 00 000
68,08,925 68,03,025 40,29,588

' 32 171
?0 00 000 20 00 o00 20 0Q qqq
21,43,799 23,03,869 1,97,s5,505

1.43 799

5 11.876

2.71698 4.34.514
1 73 20 991

9,64,388 29.62,500
4.04.e52 5.86 756 11.{1.J{I

46



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

AS AT
fifarch 31. 2018

5,62,038
96,803

95,75,595
6,63,909

30,11,282
21,75,897

AS AT
March 31. 2017

6,36.794
72.039_

1,63,69,353
2,05.000

17 ,7E.549
21 .02 123

Amountin Rs.

AS AT
Aoril 01. 2016

2.23,674
1,00,581

13,43.913
2,05,000

18,40,629
19.36,502

Note 10 eash and Cash Equivalents
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
Balance with Banks
Cash in hand
Cheques rn hand
Total

Note 11 Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposrts (Original maturity of 3 to 12 months)

Note 12 Loans (Currenti
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Advances to Employee
Total

Note 13 Other Financial Assets (Current)
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost
(Unsecured. Considered Good)
lnterest Recervable
Total

Note 14 Other Current Assets
Balances with Excrse & GST Department
Balane€s with Statutory Authority (l.Tax & Sales Taxl
Advance to Related Party
Advances to Credttors
Prepaid Expenses
Total

Note- 15 Equity Share Capital
Authorised Capital
40,00.000 ip Y 40 00 000) eguity shares of Rs 10 each

lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
23,12,959 {P Y 23 12,969) eeuity shares of Rs. '10 each

1

2,31,29 690

2,31 ,29,690 2,31,29,690 2,31 ,29,690

a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year.

2 31.29,690 2,31,29,690

b) Rights/preferenceslrestrictions attached to eguity shares
tne cimpany has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share Each holder of
equity sharei rs entrtterl to one vote per share In the event of liqUidation of the Company lhe holders of eqttity
shares wrti be entitted to receive iemaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts rhe distributron will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares ai the beginning of the year
Add. Share rssued durtng the year
Equity shares at the €nd of the year

Bihar State tndustrral Development
Suresh Kumar Sharma ltly Himanshu
Sharma

taJ2,9s0 l,si,zg,ego 23,12,969 2,31,29,690 23,12,969 2,31,29,69q

3.00,000
1,73,225

12 97 3 00,000
7 49 1 73,225

12.97 3,00,000
7.49 1,73225

12.97
749

23j2.%9 2.31 29.690 23j2s69 2,31,29,690 23,12,969 2.31,29.690



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

AS AT
March 31. 2018

15,00,000

AS AT
March 31. 2017

15.00,000

Amountin Rs.

AS AT
April 01. 2016Note '16 Other Eguiry..

eapatal Reserve
As per last Balance Sheel
Add: Additron dunng the penod
Balance as at the end of the period

Investment Allowance Reserve
As oer last Balance Sheet
Add. Additron durrng the pertod
Balance as at the end of the p€riod

Retained Earnings
As per iasi tsaiance Sheei
Add: Profif ror the penod
Balance as at the end of the period

Other Comprehensive Income
As oer last Balance Sheet
Add Additron durrng the pertod
Balance as at the end of the period

Note i7 Borrowings (Non- Curienti
Financiat r-rabilities cartied at Amortised Cosl
Secured
Term Loan sfom banks
Less. Current Maturrties o{
iong term ierm toan ,refer note no. 20)

Car Loan
Less Current Malurrties

Repayment Commen@ment Date
Total No of lnstallments
Periodicity of I nstalment
Interest Rate

4.086.823 10,195.977
10.56,'f8,835 10,25,32,012 9,23,36,035

(1.30.921 ) (1,68,574)
(1.64,449) 37.653
(2,9s.370) (1 ,30,921) (1,68,s74)

1 0.78.83.394 10.39.61 .020 9.37.27.390

3,88,38,150 5.04.36 133

1,79.02.017 55.00,000
2.09.36,133 4.49,36,133

12,53,51 I 17,60,038 22.66 558

15,00,000

59,929

15,00,000

59,929

15,00,000

59,929

102,532,012

59,929

92 336 035

59.929

_ 4,12.Os1 _-* 3J8,6
8.36.4?7 ,13,81 415 1-0.22.855

2,',t7,72,560 4,63,17,549 19.22.855

Term Loan from Bank and Foretgn Currency Buyer s Credit rs secured by way of (a) Excluslve hypothecation of plant &

machinery and other moveablelixed asseis olthe companys both present and proposed proiect situated at Ghatsila
Jharkhand. ibr first mortgage and hypothecation on the company's windmill assets situated at Tirunelvelli Tamil Nadu, (c)

equitable mot'tgage of resroentral flat situated at Kolkata, West Bengal owned by Smt Tara Devi Sharma and (d) escrowing of

revenue slrearn of windmill ogeration and sale of oxygen.

Vehicle loan rrom HDFC Bank rs secured by way of hypothecation of cars purchased under the scheme. Current Interest rate

is 10.03%

Term loan
31-Mar-.1 8

18
Unequal Quarterlv

MCLR + '1 550/o p a re 10 0%

Vehicle Loan
5-Jul-15

OU

Monthly
10 03%
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Amountin Rs.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

'Cash creciii rrom barrks are secured by exciusive irypothecalrorr over entire stocks, book rjebis and olhel curreRt assets
of the company Interesl Rate @ 10 0%

Note 18 Other Financial Liabilities {Non- Current)
Financial Lrabilities carried at Amortised Cost
Interest Acc!'ued but not due on borrowtngs
Total

Note 19 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Netl
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Related to trme difference of Depreciation on fixed assets
Total

Note 2A Borrowings iCurrent)
Financial Liabilitics carried at Amortisod Cost
Secured
From Banks
Cash Credit
Overdraft facrlities from banks under lien of TDR
Current Matunty of Term loan
Current Maturrty of Caf Loan
Buyers Credrt from Bank
Total

Note 2'l rrade Payables
Financial Lrabilities carried at Amortised Cost
Due to - Mrcro Smail & Medrum Enterprtses (MSMED,

Other than MSMED
Total

Note 22 Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
Financial Lrabilities carried at Amortised Cost
Employee Benefits
(i) Salary
(ii) Leave Encashment
(iii) Medicat Allowance
(iv) Provident Fund 8 ESI
Total

Note 23 Other Current Liabilities
Statutory & Other Dues Pavables
Others
Total

Note 24 Current Tax Liabilities
Provision for {sxst1e6 iNet of Advance Tax)
Total

7.14.370 8.13.877
7,',14,370 8,13,877

68,01,890 62.54,624 39.45,342

AS AT
March 31. 2016

40,21,493
72.76.406

1,79,02,017
4,17,091

4,55,182
3,8s,252
3,99,100

3,76,700

A5 AI
March 31. 2017

31,93.634
62,15.478
55,00,000

3,78 622

'l (o ?7R

2,80,846
3,14,313

3,96.298

AS AT
Aprif 0i. 2016

2,54,899
49.67 .451

3 43 703

3,09,642
2.25,439
2.70.409

4

1.72,839
1

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31

Note 25 Revenue from operations
Sale of Manufactured Goods (including Excise Duties)
lndustrial Gases - Oxygen
Power- Wtno
Sale of Traded Goods
IndustrialGases Oxygen
Specialty Gases & Cylinders & Others
Total

Note 26 Other Income
lnterest inccnre frorn Bank Deposits
Dividend
Income frorn Erectron Servtces
Miscellaneous Income
Profit on ssls 6f lvtufusl Funds
Liabilities .. !onger .equired written back
Total

Note 27 Cost of llaterial Consumed
lndustrialGases Oxygen
Total

Note 28 Purchase of Traded Goods
Industrial Gases ' Oxygen
Specialty Gases & Cyhnders & Others
Total

Note 29 Changes tn Inventory of Finashed Goocjs,
Work in Progr€ss and Stock in Trade
Opening Stock istock rn Trade)
Less: Closrng Stock {Stock in Trade)
Total

Note 30 ilanufacturing & Operat!ng Expenses
Stores & Spares consumed
Power & Fuet
Repair & Marntenance to
Buildings
Plant arld Machinery
Others
Total

Note 31 Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries, Waqes Bonus and Gratuity
Contribution to Provrdent Fund. ESI & Olher Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Total

Note 32 Finance Costs
Interest oarc, an - term loans from banks

- workrng capitai loan from bank
' on olners

Total

68,076

2.784.081 40.076.717
2.784.081 40.076.

27,09,213 59.23.121
95.779 29.22,489

28.04.992 88.45.610

March 2018

For the
Year ended

March 3i. 2018

7,92,22,048
42,49,633

22,96,804

Amaunt in Rs.

For the
Year ended

Marcn 31. 20i7

8.99.24.033
44.96,237

62 91 736

15,1'',663
CtJJ,UJO

53,68,751
17,64,910

9,02,941

32 46,987
i 0.16,956
18.90.669

2,491

15.51 .1'14 41 ,07.247
9.16.828 15.51 .144
6.34.316 25.56.103

15,44,963 17.42.q?9
----5BF6.e5tt ?5.1e,603

9,52,672
2,09,56,684

5,62,075
45,49,337

78,45,475
4.76,520

60,13,724
7,1i,888

37,42.806
87 ,17 ,191

41 ,1 05
23,63,S35

54.88.762
3.13,791

6.68,337
1i,32,836



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

For the
V^-- ^^)^)

March 31*aEli

Note 33 Other Expenses
Rent
Rates, Taxes & Lrcence Fee
Bank eharges and commrssron
Exoenses .etated to erection servtce
Travelling and Conveyance
Direclors Remuneration
Direclors Sitting Fee
Auditors Rer:uneratror:
(i) Staiuiorv Aucjii
(ii) Limited Revrew Report
(iii) Certificatron
(iv) Tax Audit
Communrcatron Expenses
Legal and D.ofessronal Expenses
Advertisement Expenses
Charity and Donatron
Insurance ,lharges
Vehicle Runnrng & Marntanance
Contributro" to Screntific Research Instrlutions
o.,-f-. b^,^^^- \ir-,4^- n4ounutv Datdrrw vvtrLtcrr vtl

Misceilaneous Expenses
Gain/ (Loss. on farr .narket valuation on Investment
Forex Garn , Loss r

Total

Note 34 Effective Tax Reconciliation
A reconciha|on of the rncorne tax provisron to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income
before income taxes rs summarrsed below .

Particulars

17,93,624
62,900

8.89,314
42,95,001
15,16,675
19,80,000

30,750

| , I J,OVU
10.376

12,s00
3,45,356

13,55,169
1,81 ,635
6,54,200
7,92,084
6,24,589
3,33,306
4 Aa Fla

26,92,477
7,58,802

Amountin Rs.

For the
v^-- ^-)^/

ttarch 3i. 2017

18,63,092
87,983

3.17,441
15,12,575
9,81 ,997

19,80,000
31,601

I, I J,JUU
10,000
8.500

1 2,500
4,28,115
7,68,659
1 49,336
1,87.500
4 78.549
6.36,151
2 46,340
a oA "at

23.41 .477
(12,68,609)

Profit before Income Tares
Enacted Tax Rate in India
Computed expected tax expenses
Tax benefiU Incentive on account of unabsorbed losses/ 80lC or 80lE units
Other Adjustments
Income Tar Expense

Note 35 Earnings per Equity $hare

Weighted Average Number of Shares (Face Value Rs 10)
Earninqs Pe' Share - Basrc & Diluted (Rs 1

Note -36 Commitment
Commitmen'r or Capital Expenditure not provrded for in the accounts estimated at Rs

Note 37 Contingent Liabilities :

i) Excise Dutv demands
ii) Sales Tax demanos
iir) Income Tax demands
iv) Bank Guarantees orven

5,599,292
19.055%

1,066,945

445.524

7 24.61 090
1( {F. OOA

13.84,430
61,30,325

1q 12,A 274
20 388%

3,085,575

1 ,852.718
*.YJO.4JJ

7,24,61,090
1E 1R qqA

7,1 0,390
63.08,264

4,086,823 10,195,977
2,312,969 2,312,S69

't.77 4"41

Nil (Previous year Rs Nil)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

rent servrce
Interest cost

servrce cosl
lnterest cosl
Remeasurement- due to

Benefits Dato

of defined benefit end of the

Reconciliation of nt value of defined benefit obl and the fair value of
n as at the end cf the

atr

ssum tons
tale

uture

Amount in Rs

1 .18.323
15.44,067

59.1
1.33.249

Changes in present Value Obligation

in fair value of olan assets

i^ tha cttl6ha6l 
^f 

nrlia'

) at the end



BHAGAWAT| OXYGEN LIMITED

31-ltlar-18

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 Amount in Rs

Sensitivify- analysis for Gratuity
31-l/lar-

at the end of

ct due to increase of 1 o/o

due to decrease 15,00,359

The Sensittvrty analysrs presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as
it is unlikelv ihal the change rn the assumptrons would occur !n rsolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated

There is no .hange rn the method of valuation for the prior perrod.

Effect of plan on Etltity's future Cash Flows

Expected contributron during the next annual reportrng period

The Company s best esrimate of coniribution during the nexi year | 3,04,57i

Note 39 Financial instruments and other ralated disclosures

i. Capital ilanagement
Tha rrnmnanrac 

^enrirl 
man.^am6^t rc d.ir,6n hri arniln c 

^^1,^\r 
i^ ftarhtrrn r c^r 'nd ^r^iral 

hrca t^ e"^^^d rha 
^^hlt^,,6.{v'Vi,uPgPvliv'lvagPyv|l

development cf rts business The Board of Directors seeks to marntarn a prudent balance between different components of the
group's caprtal The Management monitors the caprlal structure and the net financial debt at rndividual currency level Net
financial debt rs defined as current and non-current financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and current invest-
ments. The debt equrty ratto highlights the ability of a business to reoay rts debts. The Company complies with all statutory
?^^rr;..m^at 

^- ^^7 
+h^ 

^d^^r 
.^^,,|^li^h-

r99Urr9rrrsrrr a5 pE' $rs

Particulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016

Eguity Share Caprtai
Other Equrtv
Total Equity (A)
Short Terr Borrowrngs (Gross Debt) (B)
Long Ternr Borrowings (Gross Debt) {B)
Total Capital (A+B)

Gross Deb'iB) as above
Less. Casn and Cash Equrvalents
Less. Other Bank Balances
Net Debt {C)

Net Debt to Equity (C/A)

2.17,72.560 4.63.17.549 19.22.855
25,72,00,851 26,17,25,593 12,43,45,988

2,31 29 690
10 78.83.394

2,31,29.690
10.39.61 .020

2.31,29,690
9.37.27.390

13,10,13,084
10.44 15.207

12,70,90,710
8,83,17.334

11,68,57,080
qq AA nq'l

a2.6i .87 167
6.58,841

13.46.34.883
7,08,833

74,88,908
3,24,255

0.50 0.71 -0.29



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
ii. Categories ot Financial Instruments

iii" Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 - Ouoted (unad.iusted) market orices in active markets for identrcal assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuatron technques for which the low€st level input that rs significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3 * Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

All Financial Assets & Financral Liabilites have been fair valued using Level 3 hierarchy except quoted investment which is fair
valued using ievei t hierarchy

iv Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial risk factors
The Company s actrvities expose it to a variety of finanqal iisks market risk, liquidity risk & credit risk. The Company's focus
ls to foresee the unprecllcteblhty of irnancral markets ancl seek to mtntmtz€ potential actverse effects on fis frnanclal perfor-
mance. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures.

(A) Market risk
Market risk compnses interest rate risk & foreign currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowrngs 'n forergn currenctes

(i) Interest Rat€ Rlsk
Interest rate nsk is the rrsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becaus€ of changes
in market rnterest rates The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies to
achieve an ootimal maturity profile and financing cost

(ii) Foreign Currency Risks
The fluctuatron rn forergn currency exchange rates may have a potential impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss and Equity.
where any transactrons are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.
The Company s Exchange Rate Risk exposure is primarily due to Trade Payables, Trade Receivables and Borrowings in the
form of Buvers Credit denominated in foreign currencies The Company uses foreign exchange and forward contracts
primarily to hedge fore€n exchange exposure
An apprecietron/deprecration of the foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the Company by 1% would
result in an decrease/rncreese rn the Company's Net Profit before Tax by approximately Rs 7.51,000 for the year ended March
31,2018 {March 31 2017 Rs 7.33,000)

Particulars March 3't, 201E tlarch 31,2017 i/iarch 31. 2016
uer|yE varue Fair value gaFyig value Fair value ]arryQValue

A. Financial Assets
(a) Measured at Amortised Cost
i) Investments
ii) Loans
iii) Trade Recervables
iv) Cash ano Cash Equrvalents
v) Other Financial Assets
Sub-total
{b} tleasured at FairValue $rough Profd & Loss
i) lnvestments
Sub-total

80.00.000
ao ro nla

1 .94 ,42,211
A 1n qt ono

AO 
'q 

Ot'

80.00,000
69 4-o,0'15

1,94 42,211
6.10,51,909

69 2R q22

80.00.000
ai aa a4a

3,49,1 0,710
4,37,78,429

12 96 297

80.00.000
'tn 'r't ) 1a

3,49,10,710
4.37,78/29

12.96.297

80.00.000
42,40,408

2.84.10.454
4,1 5.34,542

16 71 592

80.00.000
42,44,448

2,U,10.454
4.15,34,542

16 71 5S2
10.23.72.057

1 t1 1'|,7nn

10 23 72.057

1 
'.1 

1? 7nn

9.50.12.655

1 4-7 117L',)

9,50.12,655

'l c,7 74 7At

8.38.56.996

{ t,il eA {?q

8.38.56.996

1,21,13,700 I tl it 7nn 1,57.71.742 1.57,71,742 1 ,34,86,175 1,34,86,175

Total Financial Aseets 11,44.85.757 11.4.85.757 11.07.84.397 11.07,84.397 9.73.43.171 7 171

B. Financial Liabillties
{a} ileasured at Amortised Cost
i) Borrowings
ii) Trade Pavables

12,61 ,87.767
56 AA 3gn

12,61 87,767
55,88 390
ZU M V1J

13,46,34,883
1.88,31 890

td JJ zvl

13,46,34,883
1 88 i1 490

74.88,908
1,63,70,834

v tr.) o-1 |

74,88,908
1,63 70,834

v tl-1 0-t I

Total Financial Liabilities 13,38,41,130 13,38,41,130 15,53,00,070 15,53,00,070 2,47,63,373 2,47,63,373



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
{B} Liquidity Risk
Ultimate responsibrlrty for lrqurdity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate
liauidity risk {tanagement f!'amework for the management of the Comoany s short-term, medium{erm and long{erm funding
and liquidity .nanagement requirements The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves. banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and fuabilities.

(C) Credit Risk
CreeJit risk refers to the nsk that a counlerperty will default on its contrectuai obligations resulting in finaneial loss to the Company
Majority of the Company s transaclions are earned rn cash or cash equtvalents. The trade receivables comprise mainly of
receivables from Corporate customers and Government Undertakrngs The Corporate Customers are enterprises wtth moderate
to good credtt ratings Accordrngly. the Company's exposure to credit risk rn relation to trade receivables is considered low. Credit
risk has ah,vavs been managed by the company through credit approvals establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring
the creditv!'o.thrness of customers to which the company grants credit tenns ,n the normal course of business

Not€ 40 Related Partias with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Key Managernent Personnel
Mr S F Sharma
Mr Hrmanshu Sharma
ItJlrs Jaya Sharnra
Mr Sukanta Bhattachartee
Ms Rrtu Damanr

Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mrs Taia Oevr Sharrrra
Mrs Deeothr Sharma

Related Party Transactions

Note 4f Disc,osure Requirement of {Segment Reporting}

1. Segment Revenue
Gases
Power
Total {a}
Unallocable revenue (b'
Total {a + b)

2. Segment Results
Gases
Powa,
Cihei 'jnallocabie expenses inet of "nallocable 'icome)
Total
Interesl 3 cther charge
Total P.ofil before tax

Companies over which KMP and their relatives have significant influence
Bhagawatr Steel iP) Ltd
Dindayal Ramruo
il^ih6r \ri6.^- /O\ I f/.

Amount in Rs

31-Mar-18

9,58,26,770
42,49,633

10,00,76,403

10,00,76,403

1.08,31,801
I E 

' 
E O11

1,23.47.734
67,48.442
55,99,292

31-Mar-17

11 17,62,969
44,96,237

11,62,59,206

11,62,59,206

1 .5'1 19,621
18.21 399

1 69.41 020
18,06,751

1 51.34.269

Partic ula rs

l(ey tanagement Personnel
Relatives of Key

llta nagement Personnel

;ompaniec oYerrvhich KllP and

their Elatives have significant

influence

March
31,2018

March
31, 2017

March
31,2018

March
31, 2017

March
31, 2018

March
31, 2017

Directors' Remuneration
Drreclors Srtttng Fees
Remuneration oard to KMP
Other Perqursrtes
Rent oaid
Reimbursemeni of Salanes & Others
Balance as at year end
Net Receivable

ro en nnn

30. i 50
6,22,926

15 40,768

34 01 .591

{o an nnn

31 601

5,37 485
o.ut I Jt

tz tY tvJ

9,41 ,424 8,96,592 5.04.000
68,460

12.55,970

5,04,000
t.tJ.tta

12.17,430



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

3. Segment Assets
Gases
Power
Others
Total

4. Segment Liabilities
Gases
Power
Others
Capital & Reserves
Total

31-Mar-{8

26 33,20,957
1 14 61 421

21 14 739
27,68,96,717

13 90,81 743

68.01 890
13 10.13,084
)7 A9 gA 1.tt

31-Mar-f7

28,09,98,020
1,41 ,47,947

24,74,387
29,76,20,3*

16,42.75,020

62,54,624
12,70,90.710
29,76,20,354

Amount in Rs.

1-Aor-16

13.52,87,578
1,34,31,763

27,49,789
15,14,69,1 30

3 06,62,621
4,087

39,45.342
11.68.57,080
15,14,69,1 30

Note 42 First-Time Adoption of Ind-AS

These standalone financial statements of Bhagawati Oxygen Limrted for the year ended March 31 2018 have been prepared In
accordance wrth lnd AS For the purposes of transition to Ind AS. ihe Company has followed the guidance prescribed in Ind AS
101 -First Time Adoptron of Indian Accounting Standard, with Apnl 1 2015 as the transition date and IGAAP as the previous GAAP

The transitron to Ind AS has resulted in changes In the presentatron of the financial statements, disclosures in the notes thereto
and accountrng policres and princaples The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied rn preparing the standatone
financial statements for the year ended March 31 , 2018 and the comparative information An explanation of how the transition
from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affecded the Company's Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, is set out in note 42(2)
and 42(3) Exemptrons on first time adoptron of Ind AS availed rn accordance with lnd AS 101 have been set out in note 42(1)

1. Exemptions ayailed on first time adoption of lnd-AS 101

Ind AS 101 allows first ttme adopters c€rtain exemptions from the retrospective agplication of c€rtain requirements under Ind
AS The Compsny has applred following exemptions rn the financial srarements:

i) ln accordance with Ind AS 101 . the Company has elected not to restate business combtnations that occurred before
the date of transnion r e l st April 2016 ln view of the same. the lndian GAAP carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.
that are required to be recognised under lnd AS, is therr deemed cost al the date of the acquisition After the date of
the acouisrtion measurement is In accordanc€ with respective lnd AS.

ii) In accordance with Ind AS 101 , the Company has elected to contrnue with the carrying values under previous GAAP
as deemed cost at the transition date i e 1 st April 2016 for all the items of property, piant and equipment. except
freehold land The same election has been made in respect of Intangible assets.

56



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN L|MITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2. Reconciliation of Eguity as at date of transition

Partic ulars

Amount in Rs.

Bafancs Sheet as at March 3l, 2917

Ind AS

16.23,79.546

2.37,71,742
68.03,025

15.51 .144

3.49. 1 0.71 0
7 nq A??

4,30,69,596
2,24,194

i2 96,297

Assets
Non-Currerrt Assets
a) Property Plant and Equipment
b) Capital Work-rn-Progress
c) Financiar Assets
i) Investments
ii) Loans
iii) Other Frnancral Assets
d) Other Non-Curren! Assets

Current Assets
a) Inventorres
l\ Ei^^^a.^' 

^^^^.^u,f r il rar rvrdr ^55ct5
i) Trade Recervables
ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
iii) Other Bank Balances
iv) Loans
v) Other Financtai Assets
c) Other Current Assets

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
a) Equity Share caprtal
b) Other Equ{v

Liabilities
Non-Currerii Liabilities
a) Financial Lrabtlitres
i) Borrowings
ii) Other Financtal Lrabilitres
b) Defened rax Lrabilities rnet)

eurrent Liabilities
a) Financial Lrabilitres
i) Borrowings
ii) Trade Payables
iii) Other Frnanoal Lrabilrtres
h\ n.!^. -,,-.^^, | ,-a,li..^-u., vrr rsl
c) Curreni rar Lrabrlites inet)

1

a.b
2.31,29,690

1.020

4,63.17,549
8.13.877

62.54.624

8.83, 17.334
1.88,31,890

1 0, 19,420

Total Equity and liabilities

Notes

a. Under Ina AS rnvestments have been classified as fair value through profit or loss on reportrng dates.

b. Adjustments to retained earnings. other comprehensive incorne and deferred tax has been made in accordance to Ind AS
rUltlle{ dQtLtdrldr 9dl 15 dllU 'U)seS dle rtrluglllztu ll U(llel 9urrt(,lellellslve lllUUrllE lllsttrdg 9l PlUllt dllU l95s

Balae Shat as at April l, 2l)l$

2.12 86,116
34 85.493

22 52,044
40 29,588

2 45.000

2,12.86.116
34,85,493

r7 65,869) | 2.14.86,175
40.29.588

2.45 000

41 07.247

84 10.4S
15 34,542

20.51 .449
14.26,592

41 ,O7 247

2.U,10,454
3.24.255

4,12,10.287
2,10,820

14.26 592

1q q1 1At

3,49,10,710
4,37,78,429

17,31 ,312
12,96.29t7

2,31 29,690
9,44.93.259

z.J |,/v.ovu
9.37.27.394 4.94.741

4.63,17.549
8.13.877

55,66.053
63 70,834

9 03,631
tt 1a tal

55,66,053
1,63,70.834

9,03,631
tE aa tta

8,83,17.33
1,88,31,889

10,19,420
Ea oE )14JZ,9J.J I J

3/



BHAGAWATI OXYGEN LIMITED

Effect of
tlansition to

INCOME
Revenue from operatrons
Other Income
Total Income

D(PEr{SES
Cost of Matenal Consumed
Purchases of Traded Goods
Changes in Inventory of Finished Goods, Work in
Progress & Stock rn Trade
Excrse Duty on Sale of Goods
Manufactunng Expenses
Empiovee Benefit Expenses
Finance Costs
Deprecration and Amortisation Expense
Other Exoenses
Total Expenses

Profiu(loss) before Tax

Tax Expense:
('1 )Current Tax

{2} Mat
(3) Deferred Tax
Profit for the period

Other Comprehensive lncome
Items that will not be classified to
statement of Profrt or Loss
Remeasurement of defined post
emgloyment benefit plan

Totar Comprehensive Income for the Year

10,01,10,545

4,00,76,717
88.45,610
25,56,104

1,50.39.844
7s,03,950
18,06,751
41,76,301

99,91,558

45,653

1,39,11 ,313

26 29.011

rAmount in Rs

Notes

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Note 42 Firsl-11tn" AdoDtion of Ind-AS

3. Reconciliation Statement of Profit and Loss as previously reported under IGAAP to IND AS

For the Year endsd 31 March 2017

4,0Q.76,717
88,45,610
25,56,1 03

oa ol cKA

1,50,39,844
75,49,603
18,06,751
41,76,301

1,51,34,269

26,29,011

?7 Aq.l

c. Under Ind AS revenue from seles of goods rs inclusive ol excrse duty and are net of sales tax, discounts and secondary trade promotrons

d. Under Ind AS Acturial Gain/Loss on Gratuity routed through Other Comprehensive Income instead of Profit & Loss.

Not€ 43
Previous year s figures have been rearranged/regrouped wherever necessary

As per aur report attached of even date

For Chetan & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 321151E

A Som
Partner
(Membership No, - 006308)

Place Kolkata
Dare 30th Mav 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Suresh Kr Sharma
Cheirman
rnlN nnna116nr

Sukanta Bhattachariee
Chief Frnance Officer

Himanshu Sharma
Managing Director
/nlN nnM11R1\

Rilu Damani

Company Secretary
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